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Zhu Jie KR

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board") of directors of ("Director(s)”) of Xingye
Woaulian Service Group Co. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Xingye Wulian”
or the “Company", together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to
present the audited consolidated annual results of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year").

The year of 2021 was full of challenges, opportunities, efforts and more
achievements. Under the circumstances of regular epidemic prevention and
control, enterprises are being confronted with unprecedented challenges of
survival and development. The quickly-responded and positively-acted staff
of the Group have gained more recognition by property owners and the
government, especially for their responsive service, building management
capacity, anti-pandemic level and other aspects in the fight against the rainstorm

in Zhengzhou.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The industry competition has intensified in 2021, and the competition for
commercial space around the central plains urban agglomeration has become
increasingly fierce, however, commercial space that truly represents quality is still
scarce. Upholding the brand values of “Sincerity, Professionalism and Enterprising
Spirit”, the Group will continue to improve operating and management efficiency,

and create value for the Company and its customers.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
ESEEY

Benefiting from the long-term cooperation with Zensun Group and the
expansion with a diversified portfolio of pipeline property, the Group recorded
total revenue of approximately RMB281.7 million for the Year, representing an
increase of approximately RMB68.5 million or 32.19% from RMB213.2 million for
the previous year. Net profit for the Year was approximately RMB54.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMBI 1.0 million or 25.3% from

RMB43.5 million for the previous year.

Leveraging on the competitive advantages of our controlling shareholder, the
Group implemented the multi-brand synergy effect strategy and continued to
undertake a steady stream of non-residential projects from Zensun Group for
provision of property management services. Additionally, backed up by its brand
recognition and extensive management experience, the Group intensified its
expansion of the market and made strides in contracted projects. With years
of sound development, the Group has been awarded China Top 100 Property
Service Companies for six years in a row and the rank keep rising. For property
management services, the Group's properties under management with the
gross floor area increased by approximately 3.5 million sq.m. or 110.7% from
approximately 3.1 million sq.m. as at the end of 2020 to approximately 6.6
million sq.m. as at the end of 2021. In respect of property engineering services,
our business scale has been continuously expanding. For the year ended 31
December 2021, our Group entered into 40 new property engineering contracts
with an aggregated contract amount of approximately RMB46.1 million. As at
31 December 2021, the total contract sum for contracted engineering services
with remaining performance obligations amounted to contract sum for RMB86.5

million, which will contribute to the Group's revenue in the future.

While achieving performance growth, the Group has not forgotten its original
aspiration. The Group focused on the essence of service, established brand
image, and continuously improved its service quality. In 2021, the Group
comprehensively promoted the mission of “providing warm services”, and
became the frontline force in the fight against the pandemic and Henan 20 July
flood control and disaster relief. Property service personnel are not only service
providers, but also community guardians that played the role of a fortress,
and in such process, the Group gained the affirmation of the owners and the

government.
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
ALY

Technology empowerment has always been one of the Group's core strategies.
The Group is deeply engaged in the research and development and application
of new technologies such as the Internet of Things (“loT"), cloud computing, big
data, Internet +, and timely grasps the new development direction of property
management in the future. The Group is expected to upgrade the existing “Ai
Ban (E'##)" APP to the "Zheng Sheng Huo (IEAEJE)" APP, which has realized
the close integration of the owner’s service and the loT technology platform, and

improved the quality and efficiency of property services.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Through the turbulent year of 2021, we have taken another steady step forward

to the starting point of a new course.

The Group will continue to leverage its regional influence to further extend its
customer services, upgrade and transform from a single property management
service to diversified services, provide more precise services to customers, and
gradually enhance the Group's market competitiveness and brand influence. The
Group will continue to leverage its geographical and shareholder advantages to
accelerate expansion through multiple channels, build a wolf-like expansion team,
actively explore strategic cooperation opportunities, extend the property services
industry chain and create new growth points to achieve rapid and sustainable
growth.

The Group has been committed to the research and application of smart
properties. In the field of intelligence and loT big data, the next step is
to optimize the construction of the smart property platform, realize the
transformation and application of research and development results, and fully
share resources with unified management. While providing a safe, comfortable,
convenient, energy-saving and sustainable office and living environment, the
Group will also improve the cost-effectiveness index, so as to bring networked,

intelligent, humanized and comprehensive service experience to owners.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
ESEEY

Under the guidance of national policies and regulations, the property
management industry has been experiencing transformation and upgrading, and
the competitive landscape in the industry is intensifying. Under such a situation,
the Group will focus on its main business in a pragmatic manner. Through
technological innovation, the Group will be bold in its endeavors and fast in
its steps. In the service-oriented work environment, the direction will remain
unchanged and the strength will not decrease, so that the Group can live up to

public expectations and move forward.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to our shareholders
and business partners for their strong support, as well as our staff for their

dedication.

Zhu Jie
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
30 March 2022
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Director
Zhu Jie (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Zhang Huigi

Wang Jinhu

Liu Zhengiang

Independent non-executive Directors
Xu Chun

Feng Zhidong

Zhou Sheng

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Feng Zhidong (Chairman)
Zhou Sheng
Xu Chun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Zhou Sheng (Chairman)
Feng Zhidong
Xu Chun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Zhu Jie (Chairman)

Zhou Sheng

Xu Chun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Zhu Jie
Leung Ka Ying

COMPANY SECRETARY
Leung Ka Ying

AUDITOR
Emnst & Young

Certified Public Accountant and Registered PIE Auditor
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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SOLICITOR

Howse Williams

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Zhongtai International Capital Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKER

China Construction Bank (Hanghai Dong Lu branch)
No. 63 Hanghai Dong Lu

Zhengzhou City

Henan Province

China

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KYT-T1111, Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND REGISTERED OFFICE IN
THE PRC

Unit 407, Building B

Zensun International Plaza

01 Hanghai East Road

Guancheng District, Zhengzhou City
Henan Province

China

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

24th Floor

Wyndham Place

40-44 Wyndham Street, Central
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.xingyewulian.com *

STOCK CODE
Stock Exchange: 9916

E Information on the website does not form part of this annual report
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

RERE

For the year ended

31 December

BE+t-A=1t—BHLFE

Key financial information
Revenue

Gross profit

Net profit for the year

Core net profit "'

Key financial ratios

Gross profit margin (%)

Net profit margin (%)

Earnings per share

— Basic and diluted (RMB cents)

TRMBEH
Yezm

EF
FEALF
FDAE R

FEHHLLE

ENE %)

F BT (%)

BRAEF

- EAXREE (ARES)

2021 2020
—F--F | = =F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR [ AKETE
281,660 213,188
93,806 86,739
54,528 43,503
54,528 49,468
33.3% 40.7%
19.4% 20.4%
13.6 1.4

Note: The core net profit represents the Group's net profit for the year excluding the

effect of listing expenses.

SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET

MiEE : ZOAEREARENG EmASEE

Total assets

Cash and cash equivalent
Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Current ratio (times)

BEMRE

A MREHEY
RiEMEE
PR HE
MELLE (15)

HFELEF
EEEERBE
At 31 December
B+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
532,229 430,254
399,132 369,166
161,721 113910
370,508 316,344
3.4 39

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Established in 1999, we are a reputable property management service provider
in Henan Province with a particular focus on offering property management and
value-added services. We provide a wide range of property management services
which include, among others, security, cleaning, greening and gardening, parking
space management, repair and maintenance for common areas and customer
services, and value-added services which include repair and maintenance for
exclusive use areas, renovation waste clearance, intermediary leasing services, etc.
We also provide our customers with property engineering services which include
the planning, design and installation of security and surveillance systems, access
control systems, carpark management systems and construction site management
systems, in order to enhance the quality of the property management systems of

our customers.

During the Year, the Group continuously gained recognition in the industry,
and was recognised by the China Index Academy (“CIA") as one of the top
100 property management service companies on the annual rating of property
management companies in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") (“Top 100
Property Management Service Companies”) in terms of business size, operational
efficiency, service quality, growth potential and social responsibility for six years
in a row. The Group's ranking in the Top 100 Property Management Service
Companies as published by CIA improved from the 60th in 2020 to the 49th in
2021.

During the Year, the Group adjusted its business strategies to diversify its
portfolio of pipeline properties from non-residential properties and also
residential properties in provision of property management and value-added
services. Thus, our portfolio of properties under management expanded during
the Year from gross floor area (“GFA") of approximately 3.1 million sqm. as at
31 December 2020 to approximately 6.6 million sq.m. as at 3|1 December 2021.
As at 31 December 2021, our portfolio of contracted properties covered GFA

of approximately 0.6 million sq.m. in aggregate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWMR DN

During the Year, the Group maintained similar scale of property engineering
services performed for the customers as compared with 2020. During the Year,
we have entered into 40 new property engineering contracts with an aggregated
contract amount of approximately RMB46.1 million. As at 31 December 2021,
the total contract sum for contracted engineering services with remaining
performance obligations amounted to contract sum for RMB86.5 million, which

will contribute to the Group's revenue in the future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue
Our Group's revenue was primarily generated from (i) property management

and value-added services and (ii) property engineering services.

For the Year, our Group's total revenue was approximately RMB281.7 million,
representing an increase of approximately 32.1% as compared to approximately
RMB213.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. Such increase of
approximately RMB68.5 million was primarily attributable to the increase in

segment revenue from property management and value-added services.

The following table sets out the breakdown of our revenue by type of services

during the years:

RAFE  AEERFTPRHENMET
RRBRFE_T_TFIRE - RAF
B RIS 400 METIZAL -
BHBESBER/NARE I BEIT - N
T+ -_HA=+t—HB ®RTELOE
ITHANTIRRBAVBBEHRARE
865 AT AKKAANEEER/IL R ©

Bt %5 18

Wz
AREMBREERE()NRER R
BRI A K (i ¥ 3 TI2ARTS -

REBFRKREBBEHAARE281.7E
BT BWEE-_ZEZ-_EFE+-_A=4—
BIEFEHARE213285E TG NEL
32.1% - AR 68.5H B THEIREE
EHERYEETE RISERBEH S BRE
#hn o

TRV FEIRRBER S5 8 Uz
R4 -

2021 2020
—E—— B TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARETT
Property management and MEE IR RIGERTS
value-added services
— Property management services —MEERR® 223,335 793 157,937 74.1
— Value-added services — BB RRTS 5,039 1.8 7,071 33
228,374 8l.1 165,008 774
Property engineering services v ER Y 45,722 16.2 45,904 21.5
Others HAth 7,564 2.7 2276 I.1
Total #Et 281,660 100.0 213,188 100.0

. 10 XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. Annual Report 2021



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

The following table sets out the breakdown of our revenue between a person(s)

or company(ies) who/which is or are independent of and not connected with

our Company and our connected persons and related parties (“Independent

Third Parties’) during the years:

2021
—=—

—_—

RMB’000
AR®T T

NN =

TREINNAFE - RAIREBILRA
NEIRBFINEEA T KBRS B2
WEMENALTHAR([BIE=7])
HU s BRAR

2020
B FF
RMB'000
ARETIT

Independent Third Parties BYE=F 191,359 67.9 139,320 65.4
Related parties B2yl 90,301 32.1 73,868 34.6
Total HaEt 281,660 100.0 213,188 100.0
Property management and value-added services Y ¥ ETERIEE R

Our Group's revenue generated from property management and value-
added services increased by approximately RMB63.4 million or 38.4% from
approximately RMB165.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB228.4 million for the Year. This increase was primarily
as a result of the expansion of properties under management with GFA of
approximately 3.5 million sq.m. through (i) a newly diversified property portfolio
of both non-residential and residential properties which brought income of
approximately RMB30.7 million and (ii) expansion of provision of property
management services to sales offices and show flats for property projects
developed by our related parties which commenced in the fourth quarter of

2020 with full-year revenue contribution of approximately RMB28.9 million.

Property engineering services

During the Year, the Group provided a similar scale of property engineering
services performed for the customers, and maintained a stable level of revenue
from property engineering services during the Year of approximately RMB45.7

million as compared to RMB45.9 million for the year ended 3| December 2020.

FH 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

Cost of Sales

Our Group's cost of sales consists of subcontracting costs, staff costs and
materials and consumables. We recorded an increase in cost of sales of
approximately RMB6 1.4 million or 48.6% from approximately RMB126.4 million
for the year ended 3| December 2020 to approximately RMBI87.9 million for
the Year. Such increase was generally in line with our growth in revenue during

the Year associated with the expansion in our properties under management.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately RMB7.1 million or 8.2% from
approximately RMB86.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB93.8 million for the Year. Our gross profit margin was
approximately 33.3% for the Year as compared to that of approximately 40.7%
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease in gross profit margin was
as a result from change in contribution from different revenue types in respect
of our overall increase in revenue mainly contributed by (i) new income stream
arising from property management services to sales offices and show flats which
were primarily charged with cost mark-up basis; and (i) new income stream
arising from property management and value-added services to residential
properties which generally have a lower gross profit margin as compared to

those charged to non-residential properties.

Other Income, Other Gains and Losses

Other income, other gains and losses mainly comprised government grants
and interest income. Our other income, other gains and losses increased by
approximately RMB7.1 million or 75.6% from approximately RMB9.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB16.6 million for the
Year. Such increase was mainly attributable to more government grants received

and the increase in interest income during the Year.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Our selling and marketing expenses primarily comprised marketing expenses
and staff costs for our marketing personnel. Our selling and marketing expenses
remained relatively stable between the years at approximately RMBI.5 million
for the Year and approximately RMB 1.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, respectively.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly comprised staff costs of our administrative
staff at our headquarters, office expenses and professional fees. Our
administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB2.4 million or 7.1%
from approximately RMB33.4 million for the year ended 3| December 2020
to approximately RMB35.7 million for the Year. Such increase was a result of
the combined effect of (i) the increase in research and development expense
of approximately RMB2.0 million mainly in respect of our property engineering
services; (ii) increase in administrative staff cost of approximately RMB4.9 million;
and (iii) increase in anti-epidemic and other general administrative expenses
and anti-epidemic expenses associated with the growth in properties under
management of approximately RMB3.2 million, which was offsetted by the
reduction in listing expense of approximately RMB8.0 million in connection with
the the global offering (the “Global Offering”) in connection with the listing of
the Company's shares (‘‘Shares”) on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange"”) incurred during 2020.

Finance Costs
Our finance costs represented the imputed interest generated from rights of use

assets in connection with the lease contract payments for our lease properties.

Income Tax Expenses

Our income tax expenses increased by approximately RMBI.0 million or 5.9%
from approximately RMB17.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB18.2 million for the Year which was in line with the growth in

profit before tax brought from the increase in revenue during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit attributable to the owners of the parent
increased by approximately RMBI 1.0 million or 25.3% from approximately
RMB43.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB54.5 million for the Year.

Dividend for the Year

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend in respect of the Year of
HK2.50 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB2.045 cents) per share out of the
Company's share premium account, amounting to a total dividend of HK$10.0

million (equivalent to approximately RMB8.2 million).

FINANCIAL POSITION
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment of our Group primarily represented machinery
and electronic equipment used in our headquarters and the management centres
in our properties under management. There was no material additions during
the Year and subject to the annual depreciation, the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment remained relatively stable and amounted to approximately
RMBI.7 million as at 31 December 2021 as compared to approximately RMB2.|
million as at 31 December 2020.

Trade Receivables

Our total trade receivables was approximately RMB40.6 million and trade
receivable net of loss allowance was approximately RMB40.0 million as at 31
December 2021, as compared to that of approximately RMB38.8 million and
RMB38.4 million, respectively, as at 31 December 2020.

Our trade receivables from related parties of approximately RMB31.4 million
as at 31 December 2021, representing an decrease of approximately RMB3.0
million or 8.8% as compared to approximately RMB34.4 million as at 3|
December 2020, were associated with outstanding property management fees
generated from unsold properties under management and property engineering

services rendered to the related parties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

Our trade receivables from Independent Third Parties amounted to
approximately RMB9.2 million as at 31 December 2021, representing an increase
of approximately RMB4.8 million or 108.0% as compared to approximately
RMB4.4 million as at 31 December 2020, which was in line with the growth in

properties under management.

Trade Payables

Our trade payables primarily consisted of payables to our suppliers for their
products and our subcontractors for their provision of labour or services for
property management and value-added services and property engineering
services. Our trade payables amounted to approximately RMB22.5 million as at
31 December 2021, representing a decrease of approximately RMB2.8 million or
['1.0% as compared to approximately RMB25.3 million as at 31 December 2020.
The decrease in trade payables was as a result of the timely settlement of our

trade payables during the Year.

Other Payables and Accruals

Our other payables and accruals mainly comprised other payables, payroll
payables, deposits, tax payables other than income tax and amounts due to
related parties. Our other payables and accruals amounted to approximately
RMB55.2 million as at 31 December 2021 representing an increase of
approximately RMB19.5 million or 54.7% as compared to approximately
RMB35.7 million as at 31 December 2020. The increase was attributable to the
increase in other payables associated with property maintenance fund and utilities
receipts collected from property owners in relation to water, electricity and

heating costs as a result of the growth in properties under management.

Contract Liabilities

Our contract liabilities represented advanced receipts for property management
and value-added services. Our contract liabilities increased from approximately
RMB40.2 million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB74.0 million as
at 31 December 2021. The increase was attributable to the growth in properties

under management by our Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

Indebtedness

As at 3| December 2021, we had no outstanding borrowings and unutilised
banking facilities (2020: Nil). The Group's lease liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB5.| million as at 31 December 2021 and remained stable

with approximately the same amount as at 31 December 2020.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Our Group maintained a healthy financial position. As at 3|1 December 2021,
the current assets amounted to approximately RMB526.0 million, representing
an increase of approximately 24.3% as compared to approximately RMB423. |
million as at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2021,

equivalents of our Group amounted to approximately RMB399.1 million,

cash and cash

representing an increase of approximately RMB30.0 million or 8.1% as
compared to approximately RMB369.2 million as at 31 December 2020. As at
31 December 2021. the cash and cash equivalents of the Group were mainly

denominated in RMB and Hong Kong dollars.

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total debt (of which debt represents
interest-bearing borrowings) divided by the total equity as at the end of the
reporting period. As at 31 December 2021, our Group has no interest-bearing

borrowings and hence the gearing ratio was nil.

The capital structure of our Group is primarily equity which comprises issued

share capital and reserves.

Current Ratio

Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by the total
current liabilities at the end of the reporting period. The current ratio of our
Group as at 31 December 2021 was approximately 3.4 times as compared to

that of approximately 3.9 times as at 3|1 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

Charge of Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2021, one of the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC
had pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB50.0 million to guarantee the
bills acceptance granted by a bank under a bills acceptance agreement (“Bills
Acceptance Agreement”) to a related party which is a member of the Zensun
Development Group and controlled by Ms. Zhang, the non-executive Director.
In March 2022, such pledge was terminated between the Company's subsidiary
and the bank and all pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB50.0 million was
released from the financial guarantee provided by the Group for indebtedness of

the related party.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, one of the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC had
pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB50.0 million to guarantee the bills
acceptance granted by a bank under the Bills Acceptance Agreement to a related
party which is a member of the Zensun Development Group and controlled
by Ms. Zhang, the non-executive Director. In March 2022, such pledge was
terminated between the Company's subsidiary and the bank and all pledged bank
deposits amounting to RMB50.0 million was released from the financial guarantee
provided by the Group for indebtedness of the related party. The Board
consider that the possibility of default in payment regarding the indebtedness of
the related party is remote as the above pledge was terminated between the
Company's subsidiary and the bank and all pledged bank deposits was released
from the financial guarantee provided for the indebtedness of the related party
before the date of this annual report, and therefore, no provision has been made
in the consolidated financial statements for the contingent liability associated with
the financial guarantee provided by the Group to guarantee the bills acceptance

granted by the bank to the related party.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material capital

commitments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

Foreign Exchange Risks

Our Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the transactions settled in
Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency
exchange risk except certain bank balances denominated in Hong Kong dollars
were held by the Company. Currently, the Group did not entered into contracts
to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk, but the management will
continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure, and take prudent measures

to reduce the foreign exchange risk.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 3| December 2021, our Group had 571 employees. We generally

determine employees’ compensation based on their qualification, position,
seniority and performance. Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
we participate in various employee social security plans that are organised by
applicable local municipal and provincial governments, including pension, medical,
maternity, work-related injury and unemployment benefit plans. Total staff-related
cost, including Directors” emoluments, was approximately RMB43.3 million (2020:
RMB28.3 million) during the Year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the Year, our Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals

of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant investments

accounting for more than 5% of the Group's total assets.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at 3|
December 2021. In the event that the Group is engaged in any plan for material
investments or capital assets, the Company will make announcement(s) and
comply with relevant rules under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules™) as and when appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Our Group plans to strengthen our position in the property management
service and property engineering service industry by implementing the following
strategies: (i) undertake additional property management projects with a focus
on mid to high-end non-residential properties; (i) selectively pursue merger
and acquisition opportunities within the property management industry; (iii)
participate in an early stage of construction projects with a view to winning the
property management agreement tender at a later stage of the projects; (iv)
continue to develop our mobile application to enhance our customer and user
experience; (v) continue to enhance our property management services and
property engineering services; and (vi) continue to upgrade our information
technology systems to enhance our operational efficiency in our property

management business.

In view of the intensifying competition in the property management services
industry amidst the uncertain economic outlook due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
our Group is in the midst of adjusting its business strategies to diversify its
portfolio of pipeline properties to also include residential properties by means of
submitting tenders or quotations for provision of property management services
for such properties or mergers and acquisitions of property management services
providers or project companies. The Directors believes that such diversification
will enable our Group to optimize its overall operational efficiency to achieve
a sustainable income growth and maximize returns to shareholders of the

Company (“Shareholders™).
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ZHU JIE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Zhu Jie (ARZR) (“Mr. Zhu'"), aged 45, was appointed as our Director on
2 August 2019 and was re-designated as our executive Director, chairman
of our Board and our chief executive officer on |7 September 2019. Mr. Zhu
is the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”). Mr. Zhu joined our Group in April 2015 and is primarily
responsible for the overall management and strategic planning of our Group's
business operations. Mr. Zhu is currently the chairman of the board of directors
and general manager of Henan Xingye Internet of Things Management
Technology Co., Ltd.* (i ma B EME @B IERI AR A F]) (“Xingye 10T
Management”) and the executive director and general manager of Henan Xingye
Internet of Things Information Consulting Co., Ltd.* (7] i S 2 ¥ B = B 7588
R A R]) (“Xingye Consulting”), each a subsidiary of our Company.

Mr. Zhu has over 20 years of experience in the real estate and property
management industry. Mr. Zhu served as a deputy general manager of Xingye
IOT Management from April 2015 to May 2017 and was subsequently appointed
as the chairman of the board of directors and general manager of Xingye IOT
Management in May 2017. He has been the executive director and general
manager of Xingye Consulting since its establishment in April 2018. Prior to
joining our Group, from August 1997 to March 2001, Mr. Zhu served as a
supervisor in Henan Zhengzhou Jianguo Restaurant Co., Ltd.* (] 7 B8 ZE B &R
JEB MR A A]), which is principally engaged in catering, entertainment and hotel
consulting. From March 2001 to August 2004, Mr. Zhu served as a manager of
Henan Xin Changcheng Shiye Restaurant Co., Ltd* (T RMEEBR A
RAIRWERJE), which is principally engaged in the provision of catering services
and property management. From August 2004 to August 2013, Mr. Zhu served
as a deputy general manager of Henan Taiping Shijia Property Management Co.,
Ltd.* (OF A RYIZERB AR A F]), which is principally engaged in the
provision of property management services. From September 2013 to March
2015, Mr. Zhu served as a deputy general manager in Xuchang Huiyu Real Estate
Co, Ltd* (FFEEMHER R A R]), which is principally engaged in real estate

development and sales.

Mr. Zhu obtained a diploma in refrigeration and air conditioning from Henan
Textile Industry College (7] B %1 4% T3 Z24%) in the PRC in June 1997.
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ZHANG HUIQI

Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhang Huiqi (5R23) (“Ms. Zhang"), aged 32, was appointed as our
Director on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our non-executive
Director on 17 September 2019. Ms. Zhang joined our Group as a supervisor
from September 2013 to May 2017 and re-joined our Group in 12 August 2019
and is primarily responsible for our Group's business development and investor

relations.

Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor's degree in business administration (economic
information management) from Beijing Forestry University (At ARZE K E) in
the PRC in July 201 |, a master of science degree in management from University
of Leicester in the United Kingdom in January 2014 and a master of science
degree in project and enterprise management from University College London in

the United Kingdom in November 2015.

In addition, Ms. Zhang is currently a director of Global Medical REIT Inc, a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (Stock Code: GMRE) which is

principally engaged in the real estate investment business in the United States.

Ms. Zhang is the sole director of Foison Amber Development Limited (“Foison
Amber Development”) and Fast Achieve Global Limited (“‘Fast Achieve”), which
are immediate shareholder and intermediate holding company of our Group,
respectively and interested in 56.59% of the issued share capital of our Company
by virtue of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO™). Ms. Zhang is also the protector and a discretionary beneficiary of the
family trust (“Blossom Trust") established on 16 August 2019 by Ms. Huang
Yanping as settlor, which ultimately owns 56.59% of our Group. Ms. Zhang is
entitled to control the exercise of approximately 56.59% of the total issued share

capital of our Company by virtue of the SFO.
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WANG JINHU

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Jinhu (E£2) (“Mr. Wang"), aged 51, was appointed as our Director
on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our non-executive Director on
|7 September 2019. Mr. Wang joined our Group in May 2017 and is primarily
responsible for providing strategic advice to our Board. Mr. Wang is currently a
vice president of Henan Zensun Real Estates Co., Ltd* (AR EFE B ZHR A
2.

Mr. Wang has over 28 years of experience in the real estate and property
management industry. Mr. Wang has been serving as a director of Xingye 10T
Management since May 2017. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang served
as the construction supervisor from September 1993 to June 1995, then the
statistical officer from July 1995 to February 1997 of Zhengzhou Huayu Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (EB/NZER 0 E F & BR A Al), which is
principally engaged in real estate development and operation. From March 1997
to December 1997, from January 1998 to March 1999, from April 1999 to
October 2000, Mr. Wang served as a sales personnel, a manager of the strategic
planning department and a manager of the real estate management service
department, respectively, in Henan Xingye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.*
O E X EHERE AR A F]), which is principally engaged in real estate
development. From November 2000 to January 2003, Mr. Wang served as the
head of the landscape and decoration department; from January 2003 to January
2005, he served as a general manager of the project department; from January
2005 to June 2006, he served as an assistant to the chief executive officer; from
June 2006 to October 2008, he served as a marketing director and as an assistant
to the executive officer; from October 2008 to April 2009, he served as an
assistant to the executive officer, the head of the landscape support center and
technology centre and in April 2009, he was promoted to the position of vice
president in Henan Zensun Real Estates Co, Ltd* (M IEFEBEARAF)),

which is principally engaged in real estate development.
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Mr. Wang graduated from University of Henan (AIFIAZ2) in the PRC in July
1993 with a major in geography and completed a senior management business
administration course at Tsinghua University (B # A22) in the PRC in October
2010. Mr. Wang also obtained the certificate of senior construction engineer in
March 2008 granted by Tianjin Personnel Bureau* (K32 AE/H).

LIU ZHENQIANG

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Zhengiang (Z]#X58) (“Mr. Liu"), aged 62, was appointed as our Director
on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our non-executive Director on
|7 September 2019. Mr. Liu joined our Group in May 2017 and is primarily
responsible for providing strategic advice to our Board. Mr. Liu is currently a vice
president of Henan Zensun Real Estates Co., Ltd* (A IEE B XA R A A)).

Mr. Liu has over |7 years of experience in the property management and real
estate industry. Mr. Liu has been serving as a director of Xingye IOT Management
since May 2017. Prior to joining our Group, Mr Liu served as a deputy general
manager and a supervisor of the property management centre from October
2004 to October 2005, a deputy supervisor of the land development committee
from January 2007 to August 2008, a deputy director of the land development
centre from September 2008 to April 2009, a director of the land development
centre from April 2009 to October 2011, and was further promoted to the
position of vice president in October 201 | of Henan Zensun Real Estates Co,,
Ltd.* ORI IEEE AR A F]), which is principally engaged in real estate
development. Mr. Liu also served as an assistant to the general manager and head
of real estate management service and customer service department of Henan
Xingye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd* (i f B ¥ FEH EFEER A )
from October 2005 to January 2007.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in physics, majoring in radio physics, in June
1983 from the University of Zhengzhou (ZFJNAZ2) in the PRC and graduated
from the University of Zhengzhou (B K2Z2) in the PRC in November 2006
with a major in business administration. Mr. Liu also obtained the certificate of
senior engineer of construction and installation in the PRC granted by Tianjin
Personnel Bureau* (K3ZT A D) in March 2008,
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XU CHUN

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Xu Chun (fR%) (“Mr. Xu"), aged 45, was appointed as our Director on
9 September 2019 and was re-designated as our independent non-executive
Director on |7 September 2019. Mr. Xu is a member of the Nomination
Committee, the audit committee (“Audit Committee”) and the remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) of the Company. He is mainly

responsible for supervising and providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Xu has more than |7 years of experience in the real estate industry. From
August 1999 to August 2004, Mr. Xu worked as a deputy chief of technical
quality division of Jiangsu Huajian Construction Co., Ltd. (Shenzhen branch)*
(L& B ERERRM BRARIRIIND 2 8]), which is principally engaged in
building construction. From September 2004 to December 2004, he worked
as a civil engineer of Shenzhen Hongwei Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.*
CRYIBEE b E R AR A F]), which is principally engaged in real estate
development. From December 2004 to April 2013, he worked in the Longban
area in Shenzhen Wanke Development Co., Ltd* (&I ERIERBR A
A]) (formerly known as Shenzhen Wanke Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (FEIITE
BEHEABR A A])), which is principally engaged in real estate development
with his last position as a general manager. From April 2013 to April 2020, he
worked as a vice president in Zhuoyue Real Estate Holdings Co., Ltd* (2 iB.&
¥ 5EHEBRZAR], which is principally engaged in real estate development. From
May 2020 to May 2021, Mr. Xu was appointed as the vice president of Sinic
Holdings (Group) Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2103), and also served as the chairman of the
board of Shenzhen, Dongguan and Huizhou regions, and with his last position
as vice president and the chairman of the board of Bay Area Regions (including
Shenzhen, Dongguan, Huizhou, Zhongshan and Zhuhai regions). From June 2021,
he was appointed as the chairman of Huachuang Chengkai Holding (Shenzhen)
Group Co. Ltd* (ZERIFIZERR (XY EB HRAF]) and Shenzhen Huaan
Investment Development Co. Ltd* (RIITHEL IR EZHRBR A A)).
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Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor's degree in construction engineering from China
University of Mining and Technology (I BI#EZE K Z2) in the PRC in July 1999, a
master of construction and civil engineering degree in Southeast University (535
AKE) in the PRC in April 2005. Mr. Xu has also obtained an executive master of
business administration degree from Tsinghua University (/&2 A£2) in the PRC
in January 2019.

FENG ZHIDONG

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Feng Zhidong OB FE) (“Mr. Feng"), aged 48, was appointed as our
Director on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our independent
non-executive Director on |7 September 2019. Mr. Feng is the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is mainly

responsible for supervising and providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Feng has more than 21 years of experience in financial management, capital
operations and managing investor relations. In particular, Mr. Feng was a deputy
general manager of the capital department of Yue Xiu Enterprises (Holdings)
Limited from December 2009 to July 2016. Mr. Feng was also a general manager
of the investor relations department of a group company of Yuexiu Property
Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 123) from April 2012 to April 2016. Mr. Feng was an independent
non-executive director of OKG Technology Holdings Limited (formerly known as
LEAP Holdings Group Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1499), a company principally engaged in the provision of

foundation works and ancillary services from August 2015 to November 2017.

In addition, Mr. Feng has served as (i) the chairman of the board and a director of
Guangzhou Yueting Network Technology Co., Ltd.* (MR F M EHEER
X A]), which is principally engaged in internet parking services, since June 2016;
and (i) the chairman of the board and a director of Guangzhou Yueting Capital
Management Co., Ltd* (BEMIEIFERERHR A R]), which is principally
engaged in parking management and corporate management services, since
August 2018.
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Mr. Feng obtained a bachelor's degree in international accounting from the
Renmin University of China (FEBIARAKXZ) in the PRC in July 1995 and
obtained a master's degree in business administration from South China
University of Technology (ZERIIE T AE2) in the PRC in February 2004. Mr.
Feng has also completed the mergers and acquisitions executive program from
the Business School of Sun Yat-sen University (1 LLIX22) in the PRC in March
2015 and the Global Entrepreneur Leadership Program from the PBC School of
Finance at Tsinghua University (B A28 H S FZER) in the PRC in July
2019. In addition, Mr. Feng obtained the certificate of specialty and technology
(intermediate level) in accounting in the PRC granted by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC in May 1999.

ZHOU SHENG

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Zhou Sheng (JBIE) (“Mr. Zhou") , aged 49, was appointed as our Director
on 12 August 2019 and was re-designated as our independent non-executive
Director on |7 September 2019. Mr. Zhou is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent

advice to our Board.

Mr. Zhou has more than 22 years of experience in the legal field in the PRC.
From July 1999 to February 2002 and from March 2002 to November 2006,
Mr. Zhou worked as an associate in Beijing Weiheng Law Firm (1t R (@12
B F5FT) and Beijing Saide Tiangin Law Firm* (It R B{E K E) 2RI HF
FfT), respectively, both located in Beijing, China. Mr. Zhou started as an associate
at Beijing City Zhong Zhou Law Firm* (At R INEENEIEFT), a law firm
located in Beijing, China, in November 2006 and is currently a senior partner of

the law firm.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor's degree in materials engineering from Jiangxi
University of Science and Technology (JLPEIE T KZ) (formerly known as
Nanfang Yejin College (877782 %Ft)) in the PRC in June 1995. He also
obtained a bachelor's degree in law from China University of Political Science and
Law (FBIBUERER) in the PRC in July 1999. He further obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Peking University (165 A 22) in the PRC
in July 2013.
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Mr. Zhang Yong (3R &) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 39, joined our Group in March
2015 and is primarily responsible for our Group's financing activities and capital

operation.

Mr. Zhang has over 9 years of experience in the real estate and property
management industry. Mr. Zhang served as an executive director and general
manager of Xingye |OT Management from March 2015 to April 2017. He was
a secretary of the board of directors of Xingye IOT Management from May
2017 to September 2019. He has been a deputy general manager of Xingye
|IOT Management since May 2017. Prior to joining our Group, from August
2006 to April 2011, Mr. Zhang served as an engineer of Zhejiang Electric Power
Company Jinshuitan Hydropower Plant* (47L& & 112 R R E K 1 ERK),
which is principally engaged in hydroelectric power. From May 2011 to March
2013 and from April 2013 to March 2015, Mr. Zhang served as a specialist of
capital operations and a manager of capital securities department, respectively,
in Henan Zensun Real Estates Co., Ltd* (AR IEREZEBRAR]), which is
principally engaged in real estate development and operation. Mr. Zhang served
as a supervisor in Henan Zhengshang Donghua Real Estate Co., Ltd* ()8 F§
EERESHARAF]) from January 2016 to December 2020 and Henan
Zhengshang Shangbin Real Estate Co., Ltd* (AR IEREHBEF AR AR])
from July 2016 to November 2018, respectively, both of which are principally
engaged in real estate development. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor's degree
in agricultural hydraulics engineering from North China University of Water
Resources and Electric Power (ZE4t7KF7KEEZBR) in the PRC in July 2004 and
further obtained a master's degree in engineering from Wuhan University (/&
A& in the PRC in June 2006.
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Ms. Guo Hong (Z4L) (“Ms. Guo”), aged 49, joined our Group in January

2016 and is primarily responsible for our Group's daily operations.

Ms. Guo has over |3 years of experience in the real estate and property
management industry. Ms. Guo served as a manager in the general administrative
department of Xingye IOT Management from January 2016 to July 2017 and
served as a supervisor from May 2017 to September 2019. She was also
promoted to the position of supervisor in November 2017 in Henan Wuxiang
Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd* (Al E#IRE BERHZ B R A F]). She has been
a deputy general manager of Xingye IOT Management since August 2017. Prior
to joining our Group, Ms. Guo served as a sales consultant and sales manager in
Henan Minghui Real Estates Co,, Ltd* (RAIFA&EAEE E AR A A]), which is
principally engaged in real estate development and operation, from May 1997 to
September 1998 and from September 1998 to September 2000, respectively.
From July 2001 to September 2004 and from September 2004 to September
2011, Ms. Guo served as an assistant to the general manager and deputy general
manager, respectively, in Henan Runhua Shangwu Service Co., Ltd* (] F EEE
TSR BBR A A)), which is principally engaged in housing rental and business
information consulting services. From May 201 | to December 2015, Ms. Guo
served as a manager in the general department of Henan Jianzheng Real Estate
Co., Ltd* (AR IEFEHEBRRAR]), which is principally engaged in real

estate development and operation.

Ms. Guo obtained a bachelor’s degree in labour economics management from
Henan University of Economics and Law (8] R BT &S BUE KR ) (formerty known
as Henan College of Economics (FIFEET AL Z2FT)) in the PRC in December
1999.
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Mr. Luo Shudan (BZH) (“Mr. Luo”), aged 46, joined our Group in
October 2016 and is primarily responsible for the overall management of our
property management services and property engineering services. Mr. Luo
has over |2 years of experience in the property management and property
engineering services industry. Mr. Luo has been serving as an engineering manager
and an assistant to the general manager of Xingye |OT Management since
October 2016. Prior to joining our Group, from October 1997 to May 2008, Mr.
Luo served different positions (including supervisor of the department of general
electrician) in Zhengzhou Jinlong Cement Co., Ltd.* (81 & BE/KERR (D AR
2 A)), which is principally engaged in cement production and sales. From May
2008 to July 2010 and from July 2010 to December 2012, Mr. Luo served as a
hydropower engineer and manager of the engineering maintenance department,
respectively, of Henan Shanshui Property Management Co., Ltd.* ()7 LLU7K#)
X BIEBPRZAR], which is principally engaged in property management. From
December 2012 to August 2013 and from August 2013 to January 2016, Mr.
Luo served as an engineering manager and project manager for Project Olive
City Urban Plaza, respectively, of Henan Yaxin Property Service Co., Ltd.* (7]
TR AR 2 A]), which is principally engaged in property management.

Mr. Luo obtained a bachelor in law degree from The Communist Party of China
Henan Provincial Party School* (F#AIEIEZER) in the PRC in December
2002. In addition, Mr. Luo obtained the certificate of speciality in engineering in
the PRC granted by the Shaanxi Provincial Department of Human Resources and

Social Security* (BRF5E A W E R E{REER) in August 2010.

FH 2021

| |

IR\

!

BEREETBELE]D 46 NZZ
—ANETANMARER  FZHERM
MEEERRERYETIRRENERE
B BEAHGEBNNEYESIENYE
TREBRBITHELER - BLEE T —N
FHAR—ETCEEYHEEETTE
IR B IRENIE o JIAKREE R - B
EEBR-NMNAEF+AEZZTTNFH
AEEEZ ARG - 2IEEEMN X
D ERAE (EBRBNKEEERH
EVERBRETHEE - H_TT/\FH
AREZZT—ZTFLtARBZZE—TFt
AZE-ZT——F+=-A BAEETE
WKMEEBBERAR (EBREYME
EE)DRIEEKNBEIRME TR
BHEE AT —_F+HAZE=Z
—=FNARBZZE—=FN\AEZE
—ANE—R BEETEAIRTEHMER
BAEBRAR (EEXEWMEEE)HRIE
FIRKEERBERHATESEENE
B &I o

BAEEN ST -_F+_AEEHEHP
HUBEELEREEBELTE6 o o -
BREN_ZE—ZSF)N\AERBERASL
ANEBERMESRERER T TRAMER

FEYBRBEEEFRAF

29 )



L 30

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ETEREREERE

Mr. Xiang Zheng (#81E) (““Mr. Xiang”"), aged 36, joined our Group in June

2015 and is primarily responsible for the overall management of projects.

Mr. Xiang served as a project manager of Xingye |OT Management from June
2015 to July 2018. He was promoted to the position of assistant to the general
manager in July 2018. Prior to joining our Group, he was the administrative
personnel and business service manager of Henan Runhua Business Service Co.,
Ltd.* OFFE BB ARIE B R A A]), which is principally engaged in housing
rental and business information consulting services from April 2010 to September

2012 and from September 2012 to November 2013, respectively.

Mr. Xiang obtained a bachelor's degree in economic management from Beijing
Economic and Technological Research Institute (1 FASE R MTAHE L) in the
PRC in July 2010.

Ms. Shi Suran (BFEfR) (“Ms. Shi””), aged 35, joined our Group as our chief
financial officer on 19 September 2020 and is primarily responsible for supervising

our Group's financial reporting, corporate finance activities, and investor relations.

Ms. Shi has over |2 years of experience in accounting, auditing and corporate
finance. Before joining the Group, Ms. Shi served as the project manager in
Zhongrui Yuehua Certified Public Accountants LLP (Special General Partnership)
(a member of RSM International) from October 2009 to August 201 |. She last
served as the senior auditor in the Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP Beijing branch during her tenure from August 201 | to October
2015, and as the senior auditing manager in Oceanwide Holdings Co., Ltd, a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000046) from
October 2015 to April 2016. Ms. Shi joined Henan Zensun Real Estate Co.,
Ltd* CAF IEPS B 3 B PR A A)) and worked as a deputy manager of the capital
securities department from April 2016 to May 2019 and thereafter worked as

finance manager in Henan Zensun Enterprise Development Group Co., Ltd.* (]

MIEFCEFEEEBRELLQA]) from May 2019 to September 2020.
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Ms. Shi holds a bachelor's degree in accounting from Henan University of Science
and Technology obtained in 2009. Ms. Shi is a member of the Beijing Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Leung Ka Ying (R X&) (“Ms. Leung”) is our Company's company
secretary appointed on 9 September 2020 and responsible for the Group's
corporate secretarial functions. Ms. Leung has over |3 years of experience
in accounting, auditing, financial management and corporate governance
matters. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Leung has over 6 years of working
experience in Hong Kong listed companies, and has worked as a manager in
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has obtained her bachelor's degree in Business
Administration in Professional Accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2008.

b English translation of company names in Chinese or another language which are

marked with “*" are for identification purpose only.
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Our Directors present their annual report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of our Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Our Company acts as an investment holding company and together with its
subsidiaries engages in property management and value-added services and
property engineering services. The activities and particulars of our Company's
principal subsidiaries are set out in note | to the consolidated financial

statements.

An analysis of our Group's revenue and results by principal operating segments

for the Year is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of our Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 92.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend in respect of the Year of
HK2.50 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB2.045 cents) per share out of the
Company's share premium account, amounting to a total dividend of HK$10.0

million (equivalent to approximately RMB8.2 million).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our Group was established in 1999, with a particular focus on offering property

management and value-added services for non-residential properties.

A detailed business review of our Group for the Year and a discussion of our
Group's future business development and the key risks and uncertainties of our
Group are set out in “Chairman’'s Message” on pages 2 to 5, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 19 and the section headed “Key Risks and

Uncertainties”.

An analysis of our Group's performance for the Year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Chairman’s Message” on pages 2 to
5, “Financial Highlights” on page 8 and “Financial Summary" on page 196 of this

annual report.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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Key Risks and Uncertainties
The below outlined certain key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group

that may affect our Group's business, financial position and results of operations.

Our Group's business performance is primarily susceptible to our portfolio of
properties under management for property management services and contracted
engineering services for property engineering services. Our Group's business
growth on our pipeline properties will likely be affected by the general economic
condition affecting the real estate market, delivery and development schedule of
our contracted properties by property developers and any change in laws and

regulation for our operation in the PRC.

Our Group's current level of profitability also depends on the Group's ability to
control operating costs (especially in relation to our labour and subcontracting
costs) and the Group's profit margins and results of operations may be materially
and adversely affected by the fluctuations in labour or other operating costs
in response to the regulatory laws on minimum wages and demand on labour
supply, etc). The Group may not be able to procure new property management
service contracts as planned or at desirable pace or price; termination or non-
renewal of the Group's property management agreements for a significant
number of properties could have a material adverse effect on business, financial

position and results of operations.

Our Group's financial risks, management objectives (including capital
management) and policies are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial

statements.

In response to these possible risks and uncertainties, the Group continues to
implement a series of internal controls and strategies to cope with the possible
risks and changes. The Group also develops and reviews strategies, policies
and guidelines on risk control which enable the Group to monitor closely and
formulate business strategies to respond to risks promptly and effectively. The
Group also actively proposes measures to minimise any potential business impact

on the Group from these possible risks and uncertainties.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

Our Group has established occupational safety and sanitation systems,
implemented the national occupational safety and sanitation rules and standards,
and provided employees with workplace safety training on a regular basis.
We promote the importance of environment protection and implement
environmental friendly policies in the operation, including green office measures
with accredited international environmental management certification. We are
committed to act in an environmentally responsible manner and review our
environmental policies and activities from time to time to enhance environmental

sustainability.

Our Company will issue separately an Environmental, Social and Governance
Report under Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as
specified in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

Relationship with Stakeholders
Our Group recognises that our employees, customers and suppliers are our key
stakeholders and are dedicated to maintaining a good relationship with them to

build a solid foundation for the sustainable development of our Group.

Our Group offers comprehensive compensation to our employees, including
salary, bonuses and cash subsidies, and we also provide on-the-job training to
our employees. We generally determine employees’ compensation based on
their qualification, position, seniority and performance. We have established
occupational safety and sanitation systems, implemented the national occupational
safety and sanitation rules and standards, and provide employees with workplace

safety training on a regular basis.

In order to improve our communication with customers and their satisfaction,
our Group has established a mobile phone application “Ai Ban (E ##)" for
our property management services among us and the property users. The
advancement in technology facilitates an effective and efficient interaction among
us and the users and allows us to respond promptly to the customers’ needs,
which in tumn can also improve our operation planning and efficiency, our service
quality and our customers’ satisfaction rates.

Our Group has established a long-term and stable working relationship with
our suppliers. We will continue to maintain our assessment on the quality
of suppliers, review the procurement processes to ensure the supply chain
sustainability and uphold high corporate standard when carrying out our services.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

BRERERR

AEECRUYRBERZERALEFE &
ERBEL2RELRAREE  E
BB TRHTIESMR2EI - T
RERFERENETEN  YEELHE
ERERBER - BHEEERRRREER
ENARERAEER - RO AR
BRAEENSTATE  THEEHMN
BRIRBORTEE) - AMNRRIF AR -

AR B S AR IR 52 P 8 25 T AR AU PR 8%
ZHEREcGRE - e REARESE
31) B — 1 BUMIRE - HEREAW
==

B2 55 ME B & AV RR 1R
AEERRAKRMHET - TRMEER
RPN EEANSAREE - AR HRE
PRI R FEER - RASE ORI FE
BHREFTREAER -

AEBEREERHEZEFIEN 215
e BARRERRE BATSE
BREEREI - ZA—MRREEEE
BB FERKRREEHM - 1M
EREVBEZERELHE  BEEAR
BEZ2HEHERAREE . THRE
TRETEGHZE2E -

ARRERMETFPHNBBYRSHERE
B AEECHERMEMERP 2HZ
Y—EFHERERIER] - AREM
MY EE RS o RAMMESRE TR
MEMRPZHNAER  SMEH  ER
e R M EEFFER - Ml E
BAES R LR - REERUR
EPMEE °

AEBEEREREY T RIBENITIE
R - HPIKEERSHHEEREEN
HE - BERBERIE - ARREEEN
ARENTHENTRERETREER

£ o

Annual Report 2021



REPORT OF OUR DIRECTORS
EEE8E

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the Year, as far as our Company is aware, save for the non-compliance
with Listing Rules as detailed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
and “Advance to an Entity”, our Group has complied with applicable laws and
regulations promulgated by the relevant regulatory bodies which are significant to

the operations of our Group.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON OUR
BUSINESS

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has prepared itself to
adapt to the ever-changing challenges and environment. Epidemic precautionary
and control measures were carried out from time to time in all our working
locations to ensure that we continued to provide uninterrupted quality services
to our customers. Other than the necessary measures to prevent the potential
crisis, the Group will also pay close attention to the development of the
COVID-19 outbreak and government announcement to assess our strategies and
promptly respond to any changes in order to safeguard our community. In light
of the current situation under the COVID-19 pandemic in relation to epidemic
control measures launched by governments, it appeared that the pandemic

impact on residential properties were limited.

During the Year, our Group implemented strategy in expanding our pipeline
property portfolio to provide property management and value-added services
also to residential properties in order to diversify our income streams and
leverage the risk and rewards from non-residential properties under the
uncertain economic environment. As at 31 December 2021, our Group has
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, which amounted to approximately RMB399.1
million (equivalent to almost 1.8 times of the total expenses comprising cost of
sales, selling and marketing expenses, administrative expenses and finance costs
incurred for the Year). Therefore, in the unlikely event that the operation of
our Group is temporarily suspended, our Group has sufficient working capital to

satisfy our requirement.
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The Group will monitor and evaluate any potential impact as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic on our financial position and operating results from time
to time. The Group was not aware of risks or uncertainties that would cause
material adverse effects on the Group's operations, financial performance and the
financial position as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak during the Year and up

to the date of this annual report.

The Group will continue to adopt the necessary measures, pay close attention
to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the

financial position and operating results of the Group from time to time.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in our Company's share capital during the Year are set

out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of our Company during the Year are set

out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2021 amounted to

approximately RMB254.5 million.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under our Company's articles of
association (“Articles of Association”) or the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige our Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis

to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the

Shareholders by reason of their shareholding in the Company.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of our Group for each of the

last five financial years is set out on page 196 of this annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither our Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or

redeemed any of our Company's listed securities during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of our Company during the Year and up to the date of this annual

report are:

Executive Director:
Zhu Jie (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Zhang Huigi

Wang Jinhu

Liu Zhengiang

Independent non-executive Directors:
Xu Chun

Feng Zhidong

Zhou Sheng

In accordance with Article 84(1) and (2) of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Liu Zhengiang, Mr. Wang Jinhu and Mr. Xu Chun will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of our Company to be held on Tuesday,
28 June 2022 (the 2022 AGM") and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election. Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the 2022 AGM are set out

in the circular to the Shareholders sent together with this annual report.

Our Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and our Company considers that all of the independent non-

executive Directors are independent.
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Each of our Directors has entered into a service agreement with our Company
for a term of three years. No Director being proposed for re-election at the
2022 AGM has a service contract with our Company or any of its subsidiaries
which are not determinable within one year without payment of compensation,

other than normal statutory obligations.

The biographical details of our Directors and senior management of our Group

are set out on pages 20 to 31.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the Year, the Group was engaged in provision of property management
and value-added services and property engineering services to Henan Zensun
Corporate Development Group Co,, Ltd* (UM EEPREREEERET
A R]) (“Zensun Development”) and its subsidiaries (the “Zensun Development
Group”), Zensun Enterprises Limited (“Zensun Enterprises”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Zensun Enterprises Group"”), Ever Diamond Global Company Limited
("Ever Diamond") and its subsidiaries (the “Ever Diamond Group”, together with
Zensun Development Group and Zensun Enterprises Group, collectively as the

“Zensun Group").

During the Year, Xingye IOT Management entered into a pledge agreement (the
“Pledge Agreement”’) pursuant to which certain bank deposits had been pledged
by Xingye IOT Management as security to guarantee the bills acceptance granted
by a bank to Henan Zhengyang Construction Engineering Group Co., Ltd.*
CUBERBERTIEEEARAT) (‘Henan Zhengyang”), a directly wholly
owned subsidiary of Zensun Development.

Ever Diamond and Zensun Enterprises are ultimately owned as to 100% and
71.99% by a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang Yanping (‘‘Ms. Huang")
as settlor and protector. As Ms. Huang is the mother of Ms. Zhang, our non-
executive Director, both Zensun Enterprises Group and Ever Diamond Group
are connected entities of Ms. Zhang. Additionally, Zensun Development Group
are connected entities of Ms. Zhang as Ms. Zhang is entitled to control more than
30% of voting power at a general meeting of members of Zensun Development
Group. Therefore, Ms. Zhang is considered interested in the transactions with
Zensun Development Group, Zensun Enterprises Group and Ever Diamond
Group.
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Our Group's transactions with Zensun Group are set out in notes 29 and 3|
to the consolidated financial statements. For details of the particulars of the
transactions with Zensun Group, please refer to the sections headed “Connected

Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions'.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to our Group's business to which our Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or any entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly

or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, there was no contract of significance between our
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder of our
Company or any of its subsidiaries at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year. Additionally, no contract of significance for the provision of services
to our Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of our

Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of our Company's business were entered into or existed

during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Company's Articles of Association, and subject to the applicable laws
and regulations, the Directors and officers of the Company shall be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company from or against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur or
sustain in or about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such permitted
indemnity provision has been in force throughout the Year. Our Company has
arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
in respect of potential legal actions against our Directors and senior management

arising from corporate activities.
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DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of our Directors, together with those of the five
highest paid employees of our Group for the Year are set out in notes 8 and 9

to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of our Directors and
chief executive of our Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of our Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or any interest or short positions which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
any interests and short positions which have to be notified to our Company and
the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix |0 of

the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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(i) Interests in Shares () RROFREzR

Approximate percentage

Name of Director Number of Share held of the issued share capital (%)

Capacity in which the interests are held

B4 BERAESD FEROEE  AESRTRABNEDIL(%)
Ms. Zhang Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 226,350,000 56.59
Rt REPABA L ()

Note: 226,350,000 Shares are directly held by Foison Amber Development, which P 5E : 226,350,000 A% A% 10 R 88 A B

FH 2021

is indirectly wholly-owned by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, the trustee of the
Blossom Trust. The Blossom Trust is a discretionary trust established by
Ms. Huang as the settlor, with Ms. Zhang acting as the protector and Ms.
Zhang and her descendants being the discretionary beneficiaries. Foison
Amber Development is wholly-owned by Fast Achieve. Fast Achieve is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Glory Reach Enterprises Limited (“Glory
Reach"), which in turn is wholly-owned by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, as the
trustee of the Blossom Trust. Foison Amber Development, Fast Achieve
and Glory Reach are holding companies of the Company, each of them is
an associated corporation of the Company under the SFO. Pursuant to the
trust instrument governing the Blossom Trust, Ms. Zhang as the protector of
the Blossom Trust has the control over the Blossom Trust. Accordingly, Ms.
Zhang as protector of the Blossom Trust is considered to be interested in

the Shares held by Foison Amber Development.

BERFA  MERIPEEBHVistra
Trust (BVI) Limited (2 ZE(Z 5T
RANBEEZERE - SEER

ERELTERMER T AKX
B EREERE  RUTEEREA
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A RINBERABREZEHS
RERRECRABRAR ([
ZDHE2EMBAR - MEZER
FA Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited(1E4&
LEEENITEANZERES -
RINBR - RERKREH/ER
BIRIER AR REBEEF LS
{115 F 3% B 39 A AN A B A AEEE
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(ii) Interests in ordinary shares of associated corporations of our

Company

(i) RE L AEE % B EEK T

Approximate
percentage of

the issued

Name of Name of Capacity in which Number of  share capital
Director associated corporation the interests are held shares held (%)
HEBITRE

EEHA HHEHEE & EaE5EE SN FisROBE BOBED (%)

Ms. Zhang Glory Reach Interest in controlled 100 100
corporation (Note 1)

R L Rz REE XS ()

Ms. Zhang Fast Achieve Interest in controlled 100 100
corporation (Note 1)

SRt HIE R AE e (FRE)

Ms. Zhang Foison Amber Development Beneficial owner (Note 1) 50,000 100

SRRt KR BEmBEAA ()

Notes: BEE -

(1) 226,350,000 Shares are directly held by Foison Amber Development, which (1) 226,350,000 %% D AHEEIHEER
is indirectly wholly-owned by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, the trustee of the BERE  MEMERAVistra
Blossom Trust. The Blossom Trust is a discretionary trust established by Trust (BVI) Limited (2 ZESFEM R
Ms. Huang as the settlor, Ms. Zhang acting as the protector and Ms. Zhang AANEE2ERE - BEEER
and her descendants being the discretionary beneficiaries. Foison Amber HELTIERMER T AKILH
Development is wholly-owned by Fast Achieve. Fast Achieve is a wholly- 2RE  ARZTEEREA
owned subsidiary of Glory Reach, which in turn is wholly-owned by Vistra NERZEREGEEZERE
Trust (BVI) Limited, as the trustee of the Blossom Trust. Foison Amber BXZ#EA BIABRBREDE
Development, Fast Achieve and Glory Reach are holding companies of BB - RERRENZENBAR
our Company, each of them is an associated corporation of our Company A] » M&E R Vistra Trust (BVI)
under the SFO. Pursuant to the trust instrument governing the Blossom Limited ({E /R B EETENZTEA)
Trust, Ms. Zhang as the protector of the Blossom Trust has the control 2EWE - RIVER - RERR
over the Blossom Trust. Accordingly, Ms. Zhang as protector of the ERARTNERAR - RIEE
Blossom Trust is considered to be interested in the Shares held by Foison F LB EHEIRESEBHRAEAR
Amber Development and the total issued share capital of Foison Amber AIRAEEDEE - BBRECER
Development, Fast Achieve and Glory Reach. FEMEFRLIA  RRTIERYE

ERNREAHEECTREE
Bl - Bt - REEERBERE
FENREABRRBERBERMN
FROREBAER  RERKRE
BB BEITIRANEED A A -

(2) Ms. Zhang is a director of both Fast Achieve and Foison Amber Q) RRIEBRERBINBVEZEE -
Development.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. Annual Report 2021
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of our Directors
or chief executive of our Company had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of our Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which: (a) were notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) have to be notified to our
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out
in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Neither our Company nor any of its subsidiaries were a party to any
arrangements to enable our Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, our Company or any other body
corporate and neither our Directors nor any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of our Company, or

had exercised any such right at any time during the Year.
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CAPITAL RAISING ACTIVITIES AND THE USE OF
PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

On the 9 March 2020 (the “Listing Date"), the Shares of our Company were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and 100,000,000 new Shares
were issued in the Global Offering. After deducting the underwriting fees and
commissions and other estimated expenses in connection with the Global
Offering of ordinary Shares of par value HK$0.01 each of our Company,
including, a public offering in Hong Kong of 50,000,000 Shares and an
international offering of 50,000,000 Shares, in each case at a price of HK$1.99
per Share, net proceeds from the Global Offering amounted to approximately
HK$167.8 million (equivalent to RMBI149.6 million). As at 31 December 2021,
our Group had utilised approximately RMB36.2 million of the capital raised as

follows:

Utilised
net proceeds
asat 3l

Planned
amount of the
net proceeds
for its December

2020
R-B-%F
+ZA=1+-H
WEB RS
et
RMB million
ARBEER

Intended use of the net proceeds Percentage  intended use

STEAERTE
RENFEH

BEFELE
RMB million
AR%EER

RS EFENRERR

EXREETEREZRBEMER
HA®
RATROAR—_E-_EF=ANAB ([ L
MEBDRBRMAERLET - BERE
BRE & 217 100,000,000 A% FTA% » F1R 2
AAREREEOIEITHE B (B
EAENFEE50,000,0000% & BIFR 3% &
50,000,000% * AR (7 1.99 LRI B
BT E)REIREERBANEHEER LA
SUAREMAEHAZE - 2REEME
HIEFEARI678EEBT (HERA
R¥149.688T) RZT-_—F+=A
=+t—H AEBEEROTHAREAM
EENESTHNOARKE2BETT -

Net Unutilised
proceeds  net proceeds
utilised asat 3|

Expected
timeline for

the usage of the
unutilised

net proceeds

December
2021
R=B=-%
+ZA=1+-H
WRBRFE
RERE
RMB million
AR%EER

during
the Year

REA

g EREN
ROFRNEER
RMB million
AR%EER

rEECHA
S RIRRE
RMB million
AR¥EER

(1) Acquisition of suitable acquisition targets 72.3% 108.2 - - 108.2 Within three years
WA EHEEN upon the Listing Date
BEMRSE=FR
(2)  Enhancing our property engineering services 72% 108 3 77 - N/A
AR R TRRS NER
(3)  Enhancing our property management services 10.5% 157 30 75 52 Within three years
RARMOYEERRS upon the Listing Date
BEFRSE=FR
(4)  General working capital 10.0% 149 149 - - N/A
—HREEES TR
Total 100.0% 149.6 210 152 1134
@t

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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Given the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on the macro-economic
environment, the Group will continue to seek suitable targets for acquisitions
and investments or cooperation. We will adopt a prudent manner in identifying
potential targets so as to utilize the net proceeds from the Global Offering
effectively and efficiently for the long term benefit and development of the

Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

For the Year, the revenue attributable to the largest customer of the Group
accounted for approximately 16.6% of our Group's total revenue of the Year and
the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 34.9% of

our Group's total revenue of the Year.

During the Year, save for Ms. Zhang's interests in Zensun Group, none of our
Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of the Shareholders (who to
the best knowledge of our Directors own more than 5% of our Company's
issued share capital) had any interest in our Group's five largest customers. For
details of the interest of Ms. Zhang in the transactions with Zensun Group, please

refer to the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions'.

Major Suppliers

For the Year, the purchases from the largest supplier of our Group accounted
for approximately 48.3% of our Group's total purchases in the Year and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 51.1% of our Group's

total purchases in the Year.

During the Year, none of our Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of
the Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of our Company's issued share capital) had any interest in our Group's five

largest suppliers.

FH 2021
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EBEBEEEZ  LEBtBRAE2REER
BRIEFE  AASENREMNS R
BAELERL ©

FEEFREER
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RAFE  AEERAES EEREG
AR ARG 6.6% « TASE
BRAESEAERRFE YN
34.9% °

REAFE  BRRATEEBSEHEFE
@I MEBER  FARENETHE
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RpTHERD  FLHIFERERS]
—ffie

FEMER

RAEE  AEEZAHEEEHNRER
EASERFEBREENL483% «
REBRAARHEEGAEBRARFEEHEK
HEREAIAYS1.1% o

RAFE  BEESE  TARSNEE
HEAREARR (BESAARELAR
AN EBITIRAMNS%IA L)RAKER KR
HEm P HEA R o

FEYBRBEEEFRAF

45 |



»
7

| 46

REPORT OF OUR DIRECTORS
EEERE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal course of
business are provided under notes 20 and 31 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report. Save as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”, the Board
confirmed that none of these related party transactions constitute a connected
transaction or a continuing connected transaction as required to be disclosed

under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Pledge Agreement

On 31 December 2021, Xingye IOT Management, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Pledge Agreement with Hua Xia
Bank Co., Limited, Zhengzhou branch (the “Bank’), pursuant to which bank
deposits of RMB50 million had been pledged (“Pledged Deposits™) by Xingye
IOT Management in favour of the Bank as security to guarantee the bills
acceptance for the amount of RMB50 million (“Bills Acceptance”) granted by
the Bank to Henan Zhengyang. There was no interest or collateral provided by
Henan Zhengyang to Xingye IOT Management for the provision of the Pledged
Deposit by Xingye IOT Management to the Bank under the Pledge Agreement.
The Company considered that the entering into of the Pledge Agreement
was an inadvertent mistake by Xingye IOT Management and therefore took
active steps to terminate the transaction. On 29 March 2022, Xingye 10T
Management entered into a supplemental agreement with the Bank and Henan
Zhengyang pursuant to which it was agreed that the Pledge Agreement would
be terminated subject to Henan Zhengyang placing a deposit of RMB50 million in
the Bank as cash collateral for the Bills Acceptance, and on the same day, Xingye
IOT Management was informed by the Bank that the Pledge Agreement was

terminated and the Pledged Deposit has been released.

As the Pledge Agreement is given by Xingye IOT Management to guarantee Bills
Acceptance granted by the Bank to Henan Zhengyang, it constitutes provision of

financial assistance by the Group to Henan Zhengyang.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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Given that one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in relation to
the Pledge Agreement is more than 5% but less than 25%, the transactions
contemplated under the Pledge Agreement constitutes a discloseable transaction
of the Company and is subject to notification and announcement requirements

under Chapter 4 of the Listing Rules.

Henan Zhengyang is directly wholly owned by Zensun Development and
a 30%-controlled company of Ms. Zhang, our controlling shareholder and
therefore, Henan Zhengyang is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. The transactions under the Pledge Agreement constitutes a
connected transaction for the Company and is subject to the announcement,
circular and Shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter [4A of the

Listing Rules.

Due to inadvertent oversight, the Company failed to comply with (i) the
notification and announcement requirements under Chapter |4 of the
Listing Rules; and (i) the announcement, circular and Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules in a timely manner at the
relevant time of the entering into of the Pledge Agreement. The Company was
not aware of such non-compliance of the Listing Rules until recently in the course
of preparing the Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Given that as at the date of this annual report, the Pledge Agreement has been
terminated and the pledged deposit has been released by the Bank, the Directors
are of the view that the risk of any enforcement action by the Bank under the

Pledge Agreement is remote.

FH 2021
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules, the following transactions
are continuing connected transactions which are subject to the disclosure

requirements under Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.

I. Master Property Management Framework Agreements
On 18 February 2020, the Company entered into a master property
management framework agreement with each of Ever Diamond (the “Ever
Diamond Master Property Management Framework Agreement”), Zensun
Development (the “Zensun Development Master Property Management
Framework Agreement’’) and Zensun Enterprises (the “Zensun Enterprises
Master Property Management Framework Agreement”), respectively
(collectively, the “Master Property Management Framework Agreements”),
pursuant to which we agreed to provide property management and value-
added services to Ever Diamond Group, Zensun Development Group and
Zensun Enterprises Group, for a term commencing from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2022.

On 28 August 2020, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement with each of Ever Diamond (the “Ever Diamond Supplemental
Agreement”) and Zensun Enterprises (the “Zensun Enterprises
Supplemental Agreement”) respectively (collectively, the “Supplemental
Agreements’) to amend certain terms of the Ever Diamond Master
Property Management Framework Agreement and the Zensun Enterprises
Master Property Management Framework Agreement including (i)
expanding the property management services provided by the Group
to Ever Diamond Group and Zensun Enterprises Group to include,
among others, security, cleaning, greening and gardening, parking space
management, repair and maintenance and customer services to sales
offices and show flats developed by, and exclusive use areas designated by,
Ever Diamond Group and Zensun Enterprises Group; and (ii) revising the
annual caps for the respective transactions contemplated under the Ever
Diamond Master Property Management Framework Agreement and the
Zensun Enterprises Master Property Management Framework Agreement

for each of the three financial years ended/ending 31 December 2022.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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The revised annual caps for each of the three financial years ended/ending BE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—H1
31 December 2022 are set out as below, which was duly passed during —EMBFEESEFNRLETFE L
the extraordinary general meeting held on 20 October 2020. REINNT - EER T _TF+
AZTHETHRREHAE LI

For the year ended/ending 31 December
BE+-A=tT—HLEE
2020 2021 2022

—EEF —E-—F —E-=

RMPB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million
AR¥EBEERT AR¥BERT AR¥EER

Ever Diamond Master Property KB EE TR 24.0 420 455
Management Framework Agreement AR R
Zensun Development Master Property  IEf 3 RIFEE IR 3.0 30 3.5
Management Framework Agreement BIERR R
Zensun Enterprises Master Property FRBEEMEER 210 66.0 66.0
Management Framework Agreement BIER R
Aggregate revised annual caps RABTTFE LPRABEE 48.0 1.0 115.0
Details of the Master Property Management Framework Agreements and MEERBERBZE MR IHEDN
the Supplemental Agreements have been set out in the prospectus of the HEHRARARIBRAR-_ZS-ZF
Company dated 25 February 2020 (the "Prospectus’), the announcement —RAZT+HEENBEKRER (AR
and circular dated 28 August 2020 and 28 September 2020, respectively. ERDUARBHONAR-_S_TF

NAZ+TNBR_ZE_ZTFNA
ZHNBRRERBHA o

During the Year, the actual transaction amounts paid and payable by Ever RAEE - kiBEE  EEHEES

Diamond Group, Zensun Development Group and Zensun Enterprises ENEMEXREERYEEE MIE

Group to the Group for the property management and value-added ERBENRENETEENER

services were RMBI2.7 million, RMBO.2 million and RMB29.1 million, SEBEARN/AREI27EBET

respectively. ARBOL2BETRARE2.1BE
I¢ o
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Master Property Engineering Framework Agreements
On |8 February 2020, we entered into a master property engineering
framework agreement with each of Ever Diamond (the “Ever Diamond
Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement”), Zensun
Development (the “Zensun Development Master Property Engineering
Framework Agreement’’) and Zensun Enterprises (the “Zensun Enterprises
Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement”), respectively
(collectively, the “Master Property Engineering Framework Agreements”),
pursuant to which we agreed to provide property engineering services
which include the planning, design and installation of security and
surveillance systems, access control systems, carpark management systems
and construction site management systems to Ever Diamond Group,
Zensun Development Group and Zensun Enterprises Group, for a term

commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022.

The annual caps for each of the three financial years ended/ending 31

December 2022 are set out as below.

2.

METREERDG R
RZEBE_ZEF_A+N\B ' %Mo
Rl 5K 2 ([ ok B 5 T2 BIESRT
&) IR ((EREEMET
BEERBZEDREREE(EY
EXMETIRBERGZE]SBR]
NYFETRRBIER S (S ME
TREERBZ] - Bt - BAIR
BErkEER - EHBREEERIE
HMEXEEIEHMETRRRS (2
RREREZERG - IR - =
BSEBRZARREETHER RS
WS - BETREER)  HIRAB
FTEHRE T -_—_F+—-A
=+t—H8-

BE_Z-_—_F#+-A=+—H1t
— AP RFEESFONFE LR
W e

For the year ended/ending 31 December

BEt-A=1T—BHLEFE

2020 2021 2022
—EEHE —E_—F —=E_—

RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million

ARBBEERT AR%EBEERT ARWEER

Ever Diamond Master Property KB HETE 225 21.5 22.5
Engineering Framework Agreement HAER R

Zensun Development Master Property — IE 2R % T2 220 220 21.0
Engineering Framework Agreement HAER R

Zensun Enterprises Master Property EEREXEMEIR 185 26.5 34.0
Engineering Framework Agreement HBAEZR WS

Aggregate annual caps FELRERE 63.0 70.0 71.5

Details of the Master Property Engineering Framework Agreements have MEITIREERBZNFFHNE

been set out in the Prospectus.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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During the Year, the actual transaction amounts paid and payable by Ever
Diamond Group, Zensun Development Group and Zensun Enterprises
Group to the Group for the property engineering services were
RMBI I.3million, RMB17.6 million and RMB 6.9 million, respectively.

Ms. Zhang is our non-executive Director and one of our controlling
shareholders and therefore is a connected person of our Company. As
at the date of this annual report, 100% of the number of issued shares
in Ever Diamond and 71.99% of the number of issued shares in Zensun
Enterprises are ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by
Ms. Huang, who is the mother of Ms. Zhang, as settlor and protector, with
Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte. Limited as trustee and Ms. Huang and Ms.
Zhang as beneficiaries under the discretionary trust. In addition, Zensun
Development is a 30%-controlled company held indirectly by Ms. Zhang.
Accordingly, Ever Diamond Group, Zensun Development Group and
Zensun Enterprises Group are considered associates of Ms. Zhang and
connected persons of our Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions under the Master Property Management Framework
Agreements, the Supplemental Agreements and the Master Property
Engineering Framework Agreements constitute continuing connected

transactions for our Company under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule [4A.55 of the Listing Rules, each of the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by independent
non-executive Directors of the Company. The independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that each of the aforesaid continuing connected

transactions of the Group for the Year have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Shareholders as a whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged
the auditor of the Company to conduct certain procedures in respect of
the continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance with the
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Board has received a letter from the auditor containing the findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group and confirming the matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

In accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information”, the auditor has also reported to the
Board that for the Year, nothing has come to their attention that any of

the aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing

policies of the Group;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with

the relevant agreement governing such transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the relevant annual caps for the Year as set by the

Company.
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ADVANCE TO AN ENTITY

The Pledge Agreement given by Xingye |OT Management to guarantee Bills
Acceptance granted by the Bank to Henan Zhengyang constitutes an advance to

an entity under the Listing Rules.

As the advance to an entity under the Pledge Agreement exceeds 8% under
the assets ratio defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules, the Pledge
Agreement was subject to the general disclosure obligations under Rules 13.13
and 13.15 of the Listing Rules. Due to inadvertent oversight, the Company failed
to comply with the general disclosure obligations under Rules 13.13 and 13.15 of

the Listing Rules.

The details of the Pledge Agreement was disclosed in the section headed
“Connected Transactions”. As at 31 December 2021, the Pledged Deposit under
the Pledge Agreement was subsisting, however, as at the date of this annual
report, the Pledge Agreement has been terminated and the Pledged Deposit has

been released.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at the 31 December 2021, according to the register of interest in Shares and
underlying Shares and short positions kept by our Company pursuant to Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO and so far as is known to or can be ascertained after
reasonable enquiries by our Directors, the persons (other than our Directors or
chief executive of our Company) who were directly or indirectly interested in 5%

or more in the Shares and underlying Shares of our Company are as follows:

Long positions in the Shares of our Company

FERR

RZE-_—F+-_A=+—8  BEX
NEERES KB ERIEXVEE336
GFE 2B RABRNDER AR E
ft - WRBEEB AR IEL S
BERABRIEE  EEXBEEREELR
FIRAD R ABRARR (D 5% 3 A FHERE 2 AT
(BERARRZEHTHRABRINGT

RAEDTRBZHFR

Approximate percentage

of the issued share capital

Name of shareholder Nature of interests Number of Shares held of our Company (%)
R NCTTRE - ¢y

REREM EEME igsdiant = RN E D EE (%)

Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited Trustee of a trust (Note) 226,350,000 56.59
SREXFEA (PHEE)

Glory Reach Interest in controlled corporation (Note) 226,350,000 56.59

RiE R EE S ()

Fast Achieve Interest in controlled corporation (Note) 226,350,000 56.59

RE R EE RS ()

Foison Amber Development  Beneficial owner (Note) 226,350,000 56.59

KINBRE EaBEAA ()

Eco-Victory Limited Beneficial owner 73,650,000 1841

BEBRAT EREAA

Note: 226,350,000 Shares are directly held by Foison Amber Development, which is Pi3E © 226,350,000 RO BB RERE

indirectly wholly-owned by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, the trustee of the Blossom
Trust. The Blossom Trust is a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as the
settlor, with Ms. Zhang acting as the protector and Ms. Zhang and her descendants
being the discretionary beneficiaries. Foison Amber Development is wholly-owned
by Fast Achieve. Fast Achieve is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Glory Reach, which
in tum is wholly-owned by Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited, as the trustee of the Blossom

Trust.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person other than our
Directors whose interests are set out in the above section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Securities”, had registered
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of our Company, and short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares, that was required to be recorded

in the register of interest pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

In order to avoid any future competition with our Group, on 18 February
2020, the controlling shareholders, Ms. Zhang, Foison Amber Development,
Glory Reach and Fast Achieve (the “Controlling Shareholder(s)""), entered into
a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of
our Company and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition,
each of the Controlling Shareholders has undertaken and covenanted with the
Company that, she/it shall not, and shall procure that her/its close associates and
entities or companies controlled by her/it (other than a member of the Group)
not to, at any time during the restricted period, among other things, directly or
indirectly, either on her/its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of
any person, firm or company (in each case whether as a shareholder, partner,
agent, employee or otherwise) carry on, engage, participate, be concerned
or interested in or in any way assist in or provide support (whether financial,
technical or otherwise) to any business similar to or which competes (either
directly or indirectly) or is likely to compete with any business which is the same
as, similar to or in competition with the current business of our Group, namely
the engagement of business as the property management and value-added
service provider to non-residential properties and property engineering service
provider in Zhengzhou, Henan Province and any parts of the world where our
Group or any member of our Group conducts or will conduct its business (the

“Restricted Business”).
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders had undertaken and covenanted with
the Company that if any new business opportunity which directly or indirectly
competes, or may lead to competition with the Restricted Business is made
available to any of our Controlling Shareholders, her/its close associates and/
or any company or entity controlled by her/it, directly or indirectly, whether
individually or together (other than our Group), she/it will or will direct or
procure the relevant close associates and/or controlled company to direct such
business opportunity to our Group with such required information to enable our
Group to evaluate the merits of the relevant business opportunity. The relevant
controlling shareholder will provide or procure the relevant close associates and/
or controlled company to provide our Group with all such reasonable assistance

to secure such business opportunity.

The independent board committee of our Company comprising all independent
non-executive Directors will be responsible for deciding and given the authority
to decide, without attendance by any Directors with beneficial or conflicting
interest in the new business opportunities referred to our Group by our
Controlling Shareholders (or their respective close associates or controlled
companies/entities other than members of our Group), the exercise of the pre-
emptive right under the Deed of Non-Competition. None of our Controlling
Shareholders and their relevant close associates and controlled companies
(other than our Group) shall pursue the relevant business opportunity unless our

Company decides not to pursue such business opportunity.

During the Year, the Company had not received any information from any of
the Controlling Shareholders in respect of any new business opportunity which
directly or indirectly competes, or may lead to competition with the Restricted
Business which were made available to any of our Controlling Shareholders, her/
its close associates and/or any company or entity controlled by her/it, directly or
indirectly, whether individually or together (other than our Group). Further, each
of the Controlling Shareholders has made an annual declaration to the Company
that she/it had fully complied with her/its obligations under the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Year. The independent non-executive Directors had
reviewed the compliance of the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition and the
enforcement of undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition, and based
on the above, confirm that each of the Controlling Shareholders have complied

with her/its obligations under the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

X%¢“H§H§$Eﬁ$“‘77¥kiﬁ%&ﬂ?§@
R ERERRR  EEEBEA
&/@ZEE&@ZF‘?&(T&M!EU% <A
(REEBRIN )OI M AR RER
R ERIHERAIRGIEBHF LA
RERER BT AT - i i
ENRREEEFETHEAR LRE
HRRBNZEARERABAEER
FTAKE  BAKEFGERBENE
oo BHERERRGRERHKEERBE
BEARREEG QB MAEELRE

H—I A BRI R G R -

HERBEYIFNTESERN AR RS
I%%*iﬂhﬁ? AR (REZBH

BHBARRIEH AR, B8 (FEE
EZEJ‘ BRON) VBT AN 5 B 1 37 R
BEEa BRI SERNEFNESTD
HENIBERATABEIRE » WEREED
RETEABRFRBENEBLEERE - &
FARRFPRENSKEMAMK - BRIE
HxHx%&f)ﬁZ—rﬁFﬂ%ﬁ Lok PNEE R

REN(AEEBRIN - BT ESKEEE
1 o

RAFEE - RRRIARBEFZEBRBRS
AEMZERRR  HETBHEAR %
HERSREEGHNERNARRER (T
i (BRI AR (REBERRSN) ) FEZ FEA]
HEKRAEREZRBIEEHEF A EE
BERR R G EBE R F RO EM o U
FEEEBREAARRELFERA -
RIEARAFEZTEBITEN T HFER
BETZEME - BUFRTEFEEH
PEFRBE GO ETIER AR
*’JTFIETZﬁF T/ - WRE Lt
B BRSERBRRORFRNETH
E’\T RERIBE N2 BT -

Annual Report 2021



REPORT OF OUR DIRECTORS

ExERE

Ms. Zhang, our non-executive Director and one of our Controlling Shareholders,
and her close associates have been conducting other business or holding interest
in Henan Zensun Property Management Co., Ltd.* (A EEYEEEER
2] (“Zensun PM"), a company established in the PRC and indirectly wholly-
owned by Zensun Development as at the Listing Date, which focused primarily

on property management services for residential properties.

In the fourth quarter of 2020, Zensun Development Group sold 91% of its
shareholding in Zensun PM to an Independent Third Party. Following the disposal,
Zensun Development Group remained 9% shareholding interest in Zensun PM
and Ms. Zhang ceased to be a substantial shareholder of Zensun PM. During
the Year, none of our Directors were interested in any business apart from our
Group's business, which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with our Group's businesses.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by our Group during the Year

or subsisted at the end of the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Detailed information on our Company's corporate governance practices is set

out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 61 to 83.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, our
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules,
based on the information that is publicly available to our Company and within

the knowledge of our Directors.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Board
on the basis of the merit, qualifications and competence of the employees. The
emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board after recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, the Company's operating results, individual

performance and comparable market statistics.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes for the employees of the Group are
disclosed in the section headed “Other employee benefits — Pension schemes”

set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in the above sections, there was no other significant event after

the reporting period and up to the date of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend in respect of the Year
of HK2.50 cents in the form of cash per share to be distributed out of the
Company's share premium account to Shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 7 July 2022 (record
date). Subject to the approval of the eligible Shareholders at the 2022 AGM, it
is expected that the final dividend will be paid to the eligible Shareholders on or
around Friday, 12 August 2022.

There is no arrangement that any Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive

any dividend.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2022 AGM will be held on Tuesday, 28 June 2022 and the notice of 2022
AGM will be published and despatched to the Shareholders in the manner as

required by the Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed for the following

periods:

(@) For the purpose of determining the Shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the 2022 AGM expected to be held on Tuesday, 28
June 2022, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 23 June 2022 to Tuesday, 28 June 2022, both days inclusive.
In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2022 AGM, all transfer
documents should be lodged for registration with the Company's Hong
Kong Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 22 June 2022.

(b)  For the purpose of determining will Shareholders who qualify for the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 5 July 2022 to Thursday, 7 July 2022 both days inclusive. In order
to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer documents should be lodged
for registration with the Company's Hong Kong Share Registrar, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road

East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 4 July 2022.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young, who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the 2022
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
ZHU JIE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
30 March 2022
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Our Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance.
The Board believes that the adoption and adherence to the recognised standards
of corporate governance principles and practices are one of the key factors to
the success of our Company. Good corporate governance provides a framework
for our Group to safeguard the interests of our Shareholders, enhance corporate
value, improve its accountability and transparency in operations, and formulate its

business strategies and policies.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Our Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of
corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements of our

business and the Shareholders.

The Board has reviewed our Company's corporate governance practices and
is satisfied that our Company has been in compliance with the code provisions
("Code Provision(s)") set out in the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix |4 to the Listing Rules effective up to 31 December 2021 (2021 CG
Code") and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the 2021
CG Code, throughout the Year, save and except for the deviations which are

explained below:

Pursuant to Code Provision A.l.l of the 2021 CG Code (currently numbered as
CA5.1), Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly internals. Although only two regular Board meetings were held during
the Year, the Board considered that sufficient meetings had been held as business
operations were under the management and the supervision of the executive
Directors. In addition, senior management of the Group has provided to the
Directors the information in respect of the Group's business development and
activities from time to time and, when required, ad hoc Board meetings were

held to discuss matters.
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Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the 2021 CG Code (currently numbered
as C.2.1), the roles of chairman and chief executive of our Company should be
segregated. Our Company is of the view that it is beneficial to the management
of our Group that Mr. Zhu Jie, with his extensive expertise in the property
management industry, shall continue in his dual capacity as chairman and
chief executive officer. The balance of power and authority is ensured by the
operation of the senior management and our Board, both of which comprise

experienced and high-caliber individuals.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

Our Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix |0 to the
Listing Rules. Our Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and
each of them confirmed that they have compiled with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the Year.

Our Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the relevant employees of our Group who are considered likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of our Company or its securities on
no less exacting terms than the Model Code in relation to their dealings in the
securities of our Company pursuant to Code Provision A.6.4 of the 2021 CG
Code (currently numbered as C.1.3). To the best knowledge and belief of our
Directors, all relevant employees have fully complied with the required standard

of such code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and in discharging its corporate
accountability, every Director is required to pursue excellence in the interests
of our Shareholders and fulfil his or her fiduciary duties by applying the required
level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory

requirements.
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Board Responsibilities and Delegation

Our Company is headed by an effective Board which is responsible for leadership
and control of our Company and formulating strategic directions and monitoring
performance of our business. The executive Director is delegated with the
authorities and responsibilities for the day-to-day management of our Group,
operational and business decisions within the control and delegation framework
of our Group. The non-executive Directors (“NEDs") (including independent
non-executive Directors (“INEDs")) of the Company contribute valuable views,

professional opinions and proposals for the Board's deliberation and decisions.

The Board is also responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of our Group. It has carried
out review of the existing implemented systems, including control measures of

financial and operational compliance of our Group.

The Board has established Board committees and has delegated various
responsibilities to these Board committees as set out in their respective terms of

reference.

Daily management and administration functions are delegated to the
management. The Board delegated various responsibilities to the senior
management of our Company. These responsibilities include implementing
decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating day-to-day operation and
management of our Company in accordance with the management strategies
and plans approved by the Board, formulating and monitoring the operation
and production plans and budgets, and supervising and monitoring the control

systems.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of our Company, including
appointment of new Directors, approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant accounting policies, material contracts, significant appointments
such as company secretary and external auditors, terms of reference of Board
committees, major corporate policies such as code of conduct, and other

significant financial and operational matters.
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All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of our Company
and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at our Company's expenses for discharging their duties to our
Company. The Directors having material interest in the matter shall abstain
from voting at such Board meeting and the INEDs with no conflict of interest
shall attend at such meeting to deal with the matters. All Directors ensure
that they can give sufficient attention to discharge their responsibilities to the
affairs of our Company and our Directors have disclosed to our Company the
identity and nature of offices held in any public organisation and other significant

commitments on an annual basis.

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises seven Directors including one executive Director,
three NEDs and three INEDs. Among our seven Directors, one of the Directors
is female and the rest of them are male. The biographical details of our Directors
and the senior management of our Group are set out on pages 20 to 31 of this
annual report. The Board members do not have any family, financial, business or

other material/relevant relationship(s) with each other.

Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this annual report, there is one executive Director, namely Mr.
Zhu Jie. He is also the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of our
Company. He is primarily responsible for the overall management and strategic
planning of our Group's business operations. He provides strategic direction to
our Group, takes primary responsibility for ensuring good corporate governance
practices with necessary procedures established and ensures the effective

implementation of corporate strategy and policies.

Non-executive Directors

As at the date of this annual report, there are three NEDs, namely Ms. Zhang
Huigi, Mr. Wang Jinhu and Mr. Liu Zhengiang. Ms. Zhang Huiqi is primarily
responsible for our Group's business development and investor relations. Mr.
Wang Jinhu and Mr. Liu Zhengiang are primarily responsible for providing

strategic advice to the Board.
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Independent Non-executive Directors and their Independence

As at the date of this annual report, there are three INEDs including Mr. Xu
Chun, Mr. Feng Zhidong and Mr. Zhou Sheng. Our Company has appointed
a sufficient number of INEDs in accordance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules. With Mr. Feng Zhidong's working experience and academic
background in accounting, our Company considers that he possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related financial

management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Our Company has already received annual confirmation letters of independence
from all the INEDs and each of them have declared fulfilment of all the guidelines
for assessing independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Board considers that all INEDs are independent as defined in
the Listing Rules.

All our Directors, including the NEDs and INEDs, have entered into service
agreements with our Company for an initial term of three years commencing
on the Listing Date. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, all

Directors must retire by rotation at least once every three years.

In compliance with Code Provision A.3.2 of the 2021 CG Code (currently
numbered as B.1.2), an updated list of our Directors identifying their role and
function are available on the websites of our Company (www.xingyewulian.com)
and the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk). Our Company will review the
composition of the Board from time to time to ensure that the Board possesses
the appropriate and necessary expertise, skill and experience to meet the needs

of our Group's business and to enhance the Shareholders’ value.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year involving active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication, of
a majority of Directors. At least 14 days' notice for each regular meeting should
be given to all Directors. All such minutes should be kept by our Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director. Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman should
at least annually hold meetings with the INEDs without the presence of other

Directors.

During the Year, two regular Board meetings of the Company were held to
review, consider and approve, among others, annual and interim results and to
review the business operations, corporate governance and the effectiveness of

internal control systems and risk management of the Group.

Liability Insurance for our Directors
Our Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors against liabilities arising out of legal action on corporate activities. Such

insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order
to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. Each newly appointed Director is
provided with necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of our Company's operations and businesses as well as his/

her responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.

All Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings
for Directors would be arranged and training materials or briefings on relevant
topics such as updates on the Listing Rules and relevant financial or accounting

standards would be provided to Directors where appropriate.
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During the Year, all Directors (including Mr. Zhu Jie, Ms. Zhang Huigi, Mr.
Wang Jinhu, Mr. Liu Zhengiang, Mr. Feng Zhidong, Mr. Zhou Sheng and Mr.
Xu Chun) participated in continuous professional development activities by
reading newspaper, journals and materials and attending training sessions relating
to directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate governance and regulatory
updates. Our Company updates Directors constantly on the latest developments
regarding the Group's business and other applicable regulatory requirements, to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. All Directors have provided to our Company with their training records
on a regular basis, and such records have been maintained by the Company for

accurate and comprehensive record keeping.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee to
assume responsibilities for and to oversee particular aspects of our Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of our Company are established with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authorities and duties.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee are posted on our Company's website and the Stock

Exchange's website and are available to Shareholders upon request.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and are empowered to obtain independent’ professional advice at our

Company's expenses in appropriate circumstances.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Feng Zhidong, Mr.
Zhou Sheng and Mr. Xu Chun. Mr. Feng Zhidong, the chairman of the Audit
Committee, possesses the appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the

Listing Rules.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in compliance with the EZEe v BEGEFE T - —F
2021 CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among others,  EEEIGFH| - EZLZEGETEZRE Y
to review the financial information, oversee the financial reporting system, risk (B e BRMBER  ERMBR
management and internal control procedures, and to be primarily responsible for & #I/E ~ RRERE R ARBEEZEREF - I
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and FTEGAMINERBMNER  EFE

removal of the external auditor.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were convened. The Audit

Committee had performed the followings tasks, among others:

(if)

(i)

(iv)

)

()

reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020 and

interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2021;

reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of risk management and

internal control systems for the Year;

discussed with the auditor of the Company and reviewed their audit

findings;

reviewed the auditor’s remuneration;

reviewed all non-audit services provided by the auditors (if any) to
determine the provision of such services would affect the independence of

the auditors; and

performed the corporate governance functions and reviewed the

corporate governance policies and practices.
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After due and careful consideration with all necessary financial information, and
reports from management and the external auditors, the Audit Committee noted
that no suspected fraud or irregularities, significant internal control deficiencies, or
suspected infringement of laws, rules, or regulations had been found in respect
of the Group save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected Transactions”
and “Advance to an Entity” in the Report of our Directors, at the Audit
Committee meeting held on 30 March 2022. Details of the review over the
Group's risk management and internal control systems conducted by the Audit
Committee was disclosed in the section headed “Risk Management and Internal

Control”.

On 30 March 2022, the Audit Committee meeting was convened to review our
Group's consolidated financial statements for the Year, including the accounting
principles and practices, in conjunction with our Company's management and
external auditor; and appropriateness and effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting
treatment adopted by our Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best
of its ability assured itself that the disclosure of the financial information in this
annual report has complied with the applicable accounting standards and the
Listing Rules and the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). The Audit Committee therefore resolved to recommend for the Board's

approval the consolidated financial statements for the Year.

The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the reappointment of
Emst & Young as the auditor of our Company and that the relevant resolution
shall be put forth for its Shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2022
AGM.
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee consists of three INDEs, namely Mr. Zhou Sheng,
Mr. Feng Zhidong, and Mr. Xu Chun. Mr. Zhou Sheng is the chairman of the

Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in compliance
with the 2021 CG Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include but are not limited to (I) making recommendations to the Board on
the Company's policy and structure for all Directors” and senior management's
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy; (2) reviewing and approving
the management’'s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives; (3) making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive Directors; (4) reviewing and approving
compensation payable to executive Directors and senior management of the
Company for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; (5)
determining the criteria for assessing employee performance, which should reflect
the Company's business objectives and targets; and (6) ensuring that no Director
or any of his/her associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding

his/her own remuneration.

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meetings was held to review

and approve the remuneration of the executive Director, the NEDs and INEDs.

Details of our Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the 2021 CG code, the remuneration of the

senior management by band for the Year is set out as below:

FNEEE

Remuneration band

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 % 1,000,000 7T

1-y-|-v-lf

|III\=\I\‘\-\-

RiIE—F - —FEERERTAITREX
FEBISHEX  RFESRETEE R B
EEHZIAT

Number of individuals

AE

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists of three members, being one executive
Director, namely Mr Zhu Jie and two INEDs, namely Mr. Zhou Sheng and Mr. Xu

Chun. Mr. Zhu Jie is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are in compliance with
the 2021 CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
but are not limited to (1) reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) of the Board
at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy; (2) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (3) assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and (4) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular
the chairman and the chief executive officer, taking into account the Company's
corporate strategy and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity

needed in the future, together with the Board, as appropriate.
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Nomination Policy

In identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination Committee shall consider
candidates on merit and against the objective criteria such as integrity,
experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and
responsibilities, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board

for decision.

During the Year, one Nomination Committee was held to review the current
structure and composition of the Board and recommended Mr. Zhu Jie, Ms.
Zhang Huigi and Mr. Zhou Sheng to retire, and being eligible, offered themselves
for re-election in the Company’s annual general meeting held on 3 June 2021
pursuant to Article 84(1) and (2) of the Articles of Association and Code
Provision A4.2 of the 2021 CG Code.

Under Article 84(1) and (2) of the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
According to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or by way of addition to their number shall
hold office only until the next following AGM, and shall then be eligible for re-
appointment. Every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every

three years by rotation or offers herself/himself for re-election.
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Board Diversity Policy

Our Company recognises and embraces the benefit of having a diverse Board
and considers the increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of our strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. Our Company has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the objective and approach to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board (the

“Board Diversity Policy").

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board to be responsible
for reviewing and ensuring the effectiveness and compliance with the Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will consider the Board diversity
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and

length of service.

The Nomination Committee shall consider candidates on Board appointments
on merit and against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits and
diversity on the Board. Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the
Board's composition, our Company is satisfied that the composition of the Board

satisfies the Board Diversity Policy.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the Code
Provision D.3.1 of the 2021 CG Code (currently numbered as A.2.1). During
the Year, the Board had reviewed our Company's corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, our Company's policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and our Company's compliance with the 2021

CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS EEHETH
The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board committee TR AFEEEGNEELETE
meetings during the Year are set out in the table below: L RBERNLFELCE

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
HEER,/ BETERRR
Annual

Audit Remuneration Nomination General

Board Committee Committee  Committee Meeting

EZE ENZES ¥HZEE REZEE RRBFAE

Executive Director HITEE

Mr. Zhu Jie RAEE byl N/A N/A I/1 I/]
TEA TEA

Non-executive Directors FHTEE

Ms. Zhang Huiqi REHLT M N/A N/A N/A /1
TEA TEA TR

Mr. Wang Jinhu R i M N/A N/A N/A I/1
TEA TEA TR

Mr. Liu Zhengiang L i vl N/A N/A N/A /1
TEA TEA TR

Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUH¥HTEE

Mr. Xu Chun "ELE M ylo) I/1 I/1 /1

Mr, Feng Zhidong REREE 0 0N I/1 N/A /1

TEA
Mr. Zhou Sheng R E vl N I/l Il Il
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REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

The remuneration paid/payable to our Company's external auditors, Ernst &
Young, in respect of audit services for the Year amounted to RMB1,450,000. No

non-audit services was provided during the Year:

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Statements and Financial Reporting

Our Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of our Group that give a true and fair view in
accordance with applicable accounting standards and Companies Ordinance (Cap.

622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Our Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the
announcements in relation to the consolidated financial statements on annual
and interim results of our Group are published in a timely manner, within three
months and two months respectively of the year end and the half-year period

end.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of our Company on the
consolidated financial statements of our Group are set out in “Independent

Auditor's Report” on pages 84 to 91.

Going Concern

Our Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
our Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our Directors are of the view
that our Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate for our Group to

adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems including conducting
an annual review on their effectiveness for achieving long-term sustainable
development of our Group. The risk management and internal control systems,
under a defined management structure with limits of authority, are designed
for our Group to identify and manage the significant risks to pursue its business
objectives, safeguard its assets against unauthorised use or disposition, enhance
effectiveness and efficiency of its operations, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for reliable financial reporting, and ensure compliance with
relevant laws and regulations. Such systems are designed to manage our risk
exposures, primarily our operational risk, legal risk and liquidity risk, rather than
eliminate risks of failure in the achievement of our Group's business objectives
and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for the determination of our Group's risk profile within
its acceptable tolerance levels in business operation, oversight of management
in the design, implementation and monitoring of overall risk management
process from risk identification, risk assessment, establishment of appropriate risk
responses and regular risk evaluation and monitoring, so as to ensure the systems

are effectively established and maintained.

The internal audit department is responsible for performing independent review
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. During the Year, the internal audit department examined key issues in
relation to the accounting practices and all material controls and provided its

findings and recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in establishing formal arrangements to
apply financial reporting and interal control principles in accounting and financial
matters to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and all relevant laws and
regulations. The Board has authorised the Audit Committee to be responsible
for the oversight of our Group's risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on a yearly basis. Such review
covers all important aspects of supervision, including financial, operational and
compliance monitoring. Subject to recommendation from the Audit Committee,
our Company will appoint external internal control advisor to perform periodic
review of our Company's internal control system to evaluate the effectiveness
and formulate plans and recommendations for improvement of its internal

control measures and policies.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the internal audit
department, reviewed the risk management and internal control systems for the
Year. As disclosed in the sections headed “Connected Transaction” and “Advance
to an Entity” in the Report of our Directors, due to an inadvertent oversight,
the Company failed to comply with (i) the general disclosure obligations under
Rules 13.13 and 13.15 of the Listing Rules; (i) the notification and announcement
requirements under Chapter |4 of the Listing Rules; and (iii) the announcement,
circular and Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter [4A of the

Listing Rules in a timely manner.

During the Year, the Board and the Audit Committee considers the risk
management and internal control systems may require further improvements.
The Company takes such incidents of non-compliance of the Listing Rules
seriously and will adopt additional remedial measures to prevent the re-
occurrence of similar incident, including but not limited to enhancing the Group's
internal control system by (i) providing the Directors and all senior managers of
the Group with a list of the connected persons of the Company on a regular
basis and making timely updates; (ii) requiring pre-approval of the Company
for any transactions with connected persons; (iii) monitoring the monthly
transactions with connected persons to ensure better coordination and report of
connected transactions among various business units of the Company which are

responsible for reporting, monitoring and handling connected transactions.
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The Board and the Audit Committee will arrange for a further review of the
existing intemal control procedures of the Company to be conducted to identify
any deficiencies of our internal control policies and seek recommendations
from professional parties on how to enhance the monitoring and effectiveness
of the implementation of the internal control policies on connected transaction
monitoring and reporting to ensure that current and future transactions will be
conducted in compliance with the applicable requirements under Listing Rules
and the relevant rules and regulations. The review of the risk management
and internal control systems of our Group is an ongoing process and the
Board maintains a continuing commitment to strengthen our Group's control

environment and processes.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (“Code of Conduct”) for its
Directors and relevant employees to ensure that both Directors and relevant
employees are kept abreast of and fulfil a set of defined ethical obligations and
appropriate behaviours when conducting businesses and/or performing their
duties. The Company has also established and implemented procedures for (i)
collection, evaluation and publication of information to ensure timely reporting
of inside information to the Board and the Shareholders; and (ii) responding to
external enquiries about the Group's affairs. With a view to identifying, handling
and disseminating inside information in compliance with the SFO, procedures
including preclearance on dealing in Company's securities by designated
Director, notification of blackout period and securities dealing restrictions to
relevant Directors and employees, identification of project by code name and
dissemination of information on a need-to-know basis have been implemented
by the Group to guard against possible mishandling of inside information within

the Group.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

EXeNENZEeR R E —San
RARIRBEORNEZEGIEF - LABRIR
197 BB 4% i BUR B (R AT R B - ot a0 fa]
MRERERAITHREAER S EERRE
HABZEHERNBRESRKERAL
M BEREMARNRZHER
AR R R AR R AR R KR ) 608 R R E
#ET - WRAKENREREERAEE
ERABZBIREERRE EFeeR
BE N IR AEE 2 BRI ML -

ARACREEENHEBEIRA—E
TRSTATITRSTAD  UERESER
HEEBERREB R LN TRER
THRYIBT - ERENEBREHLEES
TR RRARMBUIBERIATRER
(WVs - FHEREMER - DARER KB
RAEEEMERREAEER : R(i)E
EBEBARBESHOINDAM - BRIE
LB GAIER - BEREEAR
HE - AERBCEERER  BRUESR
ETARREFRHELTAL - HHHE
REFREEFAZEEHRESFRIHR
B BERBRERIAEE N RIRBNEE
EEEN UL A RBARH
BRIENE -

Annual Report 2021



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBME

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well as
communication among board members. Ms. Leung Ka Ying has confirmed that
she has attended not less than |5 hours of relevant professional training during
the Year. Her biography is set out on page 31 of this annual report in the section

headed “Board of Directors and Senior Management”.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear, timely and effective
communication with the Shareholders and investors of our Company. The Board
also recognises that effective communication with our Company's investors is
critical in establishing investor confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore,
our Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure
the Shareholders and the investors of our Company will receive accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of our Group through the publication
of annual reports, interim reports, announcements and circulars. Any significant
events of our Group fall to be disclosed will be published in a timely, accurate
and complete manner through the websites of our Company and the Stock
Exchange, so as to safeguard our Shareholders’ rights of information and

participation.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting/Right to call
an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of our Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of our Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of our Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist himself may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist by our

Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new resolutions at
the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, However,
Shareholders may request our Company to convene an extraordinary general
meeting following the procedures under Article 58 of the Articles of Association

as set out above.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting unless a
notice signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the person to
be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
head office or at the registration office. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under Article 85 will commence on the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of
the period during which such notices to our Company may be given will be at

least seven days.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a Director at a
general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice at our Company's principal
place of business in Hong Kong at 24th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham
Street, Central, Hong Kong. The written notice must state the full name of the
person proposed for election as a Director, including the person’s biographical
details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the
Shareholder concerned and that person indicating his/her willingness to be

elected.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send written
enquiries to our Company. Our Company will not normally deal with verbal or

anonymous enquiries.

A Shareholder may send an enquiry to the Board at the Company's principal
place of business in Hong Kong at 24th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham
Street, Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board in written form, which
shall state the nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry. In
addition, Shareholders can contact Tricor Investor Services Limited, the Hong

Kong share registrar of our Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company during the Year. A copy of the latest version of our Company's
memorandum and articles of association is also available on our Company's

website and the Stock Exchange's website.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board considers that having active communications with our Shareholders
and investors is important and this will enhance transparency and clarity in public
disclosures by our Company. Any significant events of our Group fall to be
disclosed will be published in a timely, accurate and complete manner through
the websites of our Company and the Stock Exchange, so as to safeguard our

Shareholders' rights of information and participation.

Our Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders
and in particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings.
At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate)
are available to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries. The notice of
the general meetings together with relevant documents will be sent out to
Shareholders at least 20 business days before the annual general meeting and
at least 10 business days before all other general meetings. The notice contains
details on the procedures for voting by poll as well as other relevant information

related to the proposed resolutions.
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POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dividend Policy

This dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) sets out the principles and guidelines
that the Company will apply when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends to the Shareholders.

The Company may, subject to the Cayman Companies Law, from time to time in
general meeting declare dividends in any currency to be paid to the Shareholders
but no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by the
Board. The Board may from time to time determine to pay to the Shareholders
such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the profits of
the Company and in particular (but without prejudice to the generality of the
foregoing) if at any time the share capital of the Company is divided into different
classes, the Board may determine to pay such interim dividends in respect of
those shares in the capital of the Company which confer on the holders thereof
deferred or non-preferential rights as well as in respect of those shares which
confer on the holders thereof preferential rights with regard to dividend and
provided that the Board acts bona fide the Board shall not incur any responsibility
to the holders of shares conferring any preference for any damage that they
may suffer by reason of the payment of an interim dividend on any shares having
deferred or non-preferential rights and may also pay any fixed dividend which
is payable on any shares of the Company half-yearly or on any other dates,

whenever such profits, in the opinion of the Board, justifies such payment.
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According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend and BEREHE  EATEEERRER

in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter alia: BERETRECER  EFgER(H
RRE)

(a) financial results of the Group; @ IEENMBES:

(b) shareholders’ interests; (b) PREFE

(c) current and projected financial performance of the Group; (0 ZAEEBAIRERMBRE

(d) growth and investment opportunities; d) HREEERS

(e)  other macroeconomic and microeconomic factors; and (e) HtEBRMEBLERE Kk

(f)  other factors that the Board may deem relevant from time to time. (H EEFEARTRABR/BEHEME

Eo

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right BB E I IFER TR EBERWIRE 1
in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel the Me— RBE ISR E R - (B5] - (&
Dividend Policy at any time. B/ HEUHR BBER

/l

DISCLAIMER REEH

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for reference and [REREN ] -2 ABTEHRZERER
disclosure compliance purposes only. The information does not represent and BE - ZEERA TR KETERERS
should not be regarded as legal or other professional advice from our Company MAAARRREL 2EEFHMERE
to the shareholders. Shareholders should seek their own independent legal ER -WREMEMEARREZEFNBIT
or other professional advice as to their rights as shareholders. Our Company SRELERIHMBEEER - "R F
disclaims all liabilities and losses incurred by the shareholders in reliance on any W ABEAR R E KRR [ IR R AEF | —EFFT &
contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”. ERATMEEZEEREBREE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B R EE RS

Ernst & Young ZXEETENSF5FR Tel &E:E : +852 2846 9388
27/F, One Taikoo Place EBPIBEREEITIS  Fax {HE : +852 28684432
§j< 979 King's Road ki,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong ey.com
Independent auditor’s report BYRHERE

To the shareholders of Xingye Wulian Service Group Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xingye Wulian Service
Group Co. Ltd. (the “Company") and its subsidiaries (the “Group") set out on
pages 92 to 195, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 3|1 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSASs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code™), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that

context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated

financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A% BT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contq)

Key audit matter

BREITER

FRENSE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMETEXRNMEEBRETER

Recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets &5 EW 7B R &4 & E R 7] B 1+

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables and contract assets were RMB40,045,000 and
RMB21,953,000, respectively, which totally accounted for
approximately 2% of the current assets of the Group.

RIE-_—F+-_A=+—H EZFREFERELD
BEMKRESED B ASAKRE40,045000TRARE
21,9530007C * AHMME BRERBEELN 2%

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables and
contract assets as a key audit matter due to the significance of
the financial impact on the consolidated financial statements
and the significant judgements exercised by management in
estimating the expected credit losses of trade receivables and
contract assets, including the existence of disputes, historical
payment record, forward-looking factors and any other
available information that may impact the estimated expected
credit loss.

BIPSE S REGIARENEEN R W E R A —I8
BRREZFHE ARHEIGAMBEHRAMEEBERE
K- BEEERHLEE ZRUFIBERANEENTARE
EBERAFEHERE - BEREFEMY - BEX
[Hicsk - AR R A EMFTRAREERENE
A EAR RIS EFY

We obtained an understanding of how management assessed
the expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract
assets, and evaluated the design of key control relating to
the monitoring of the recoverability of trade receivables and
contract assets;
BMTHEEEFHEIRRFERGNEERMEER
BEANTANLHEEBRERBSRIEHARENEE
AT UG (O] 14 ) B SRAE Il FE FE Y AR AT

We evaluated and tested the methodologies and data/
parameters used by management, including the ageing of trade
receivables and contract assets, historical loss information,
probability of default, and expected loss;

B ERAREREMATEREE 28 8FE
FRMFIAR G HNBERE - BEBEEMN ENXR
JEHEE

We reviewed management's assessment of the forward-looking
factors, such as the anticipation of the customers’ operation,
forecast industry situation and overall economic conditions;
BEHEEEYAEERROFE  fInEEFES
EVFEHR - TR RTRR R EREANNR

We executed the substantive analytical review procedure by
analysing the fluctuations of the balances and the turnover days
of trade receivables and contract assets;
BPIMITERDITIERBRER - TER/DITE B RYGK
HRANEBEERR R AEREHRBENR ;

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZBEHE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contq)

Key audit matter

BREITER

FARETSE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRETERRNTEEFRRETSE

Recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets &5 EW 7B R &4 & E R 7] B 1+

Disclosures of determination of the recoverability of trade
receivables and contract assets are included in note 2.4
“Impairment of financial assets”, note 3 “Significant accounting
judgements and estimates”, note |7 “Trade receivables”
and note |9 “Contract assets” to the consolidated financial
statements.
HEEZREFKBENENEENWEMNKEFRHT
KRS RRM 24 SREERE] - WEIEXE
ST HIER K fhET ]~ MYEE 170 B B R IGEIR | KR 19T 2 40
BE] -

We checked, on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement of
trade receivables and contract assets against cash receipts and
the related supporting documentation; and
RPRREEEH L RS PERBEEAXEREE S
FENRIA M A B EMBERERIER « &

We also focused on the adequacy of the disclosures of the
trade receivables and contract assets in the consolidated
financial statements.

HPTE I G M BERRPESREFIERSNEERN

REREED

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE

ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The

FRARMNEEA

BEARESFHEMERAE - HibfE

7N
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, EBRRETERNERANEE  BTEFE
SN

other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that

there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

FiR 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE RS

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to

do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting

process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYRHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Contd)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.
S Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

£ 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYRHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Contd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a matenial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYRHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Contd)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's

report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2022

£ 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeEaRkEMEEKER

Year ended 3| December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—REC-F o=
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
GEE AR®TT | AEETIE
REVENUE & 5 281,660 213,188
Cost of sales SHE AR (187,854) (126,449)
Gross profit EAH 93,806 86,739
Other income, other gains and losses HabA - Hfbias & 5 16,569 9,435
&8
Selling and marketing expenses SHE RS HRA X (1,472) (1713)
Administrative expenses TBFAX (35,723) (33,353)
Impairment losses on financial and contract assets TREENEERERE (206) 214)
Finance costs BTSN AR 7 (205) (174)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RREE A E R 6 72,769 60,720
Income tax expense FRSTR X 10 (18,241) (17217)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 54,528 43,503
Attributable to: AT FE(S
Owners of the parent [SYNSIE/ZS PN 54,528 43,503
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hit2HEER
Other comprehensive loss that will not be reclassified ~ {E1& HAfE Al gE N E T 48
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: 2R EMEE
&8
Currency translation differences ME 5 =R (364) (1,243)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FRHM2EEE - MR (364) (1,243)
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HiE
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAZEBARE 54,164 42,260

FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to: PATR MG -

Owners of the parent [SYNSIEZS PN 54,164 42,260
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBEREREEA

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEERER

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Basic and diluted HARNE#E

— For profit for the year (RMB cents) —FERNRFN (ARES) 12 13.6 |4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A IR R

31 December 2021
—E-—%+-A=+—H

1=
=

Il

VIR W\ W VW
Il

Notgs RMB’000
B RE AR®TR

NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B MG I3 1,673 2,072
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 3,737 4201
Other intangible asset HitnmpEeE 16 - 302
Deferred tax assets RIEFH IR E = |4 799 566
Total non-current assets IEREBEEEE 6,209 7,141
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Trade receivables 5 5 IR 17 40,045 38,394
Contract assets BHEE |9 21,953 10,642
Prepayments, other receivables and FBTFOR - Bt YRR

other assets  REHMEE 18 14,790 4911
Restricted and pledged bank deposits PR R RITER 20 50,100 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREeEED 20 399,132 369,166
Total current assets mENEEBE 526,020 423113
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Trade payables B SN FRIA 21 22,506 25,282
Other payables and accruals HAib R R IE R EHE A 22 55,152 35,656
Contract liabilities aHBE 23 74,040 40235
Tax payable FEf TR 1,234 4966
Provisions B 24 1,238 834
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 1,514 1,104
Total current liabilities MENB BB 155,684 108,077
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 370,336 315036
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERREBERE

LIABILITIES 376,545 322,177
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Provisions A 24 1,857 1,251
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 3,590 3992
Deferred tax liability REFIEAE 14 590 590
Total non-current liabilities EMBE BB 6,037 5,833
Net assets BEFE 370,508 316,344
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners of the parent N ARHEA AELER
Share capital A& 7R 25 3,572 3,572
Reserves ] 26 366,936 312,772
Total equity RS 4BER 370,508 316,344

Zhu Jie Zhang Huigqi
A B
Director Director
EF EE

3§ 2021 FEYB RS EMERAT

*
\
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Year ended 3| December 2021

BE-FT-—F+-A=t+-ALEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BORER AR
Statutory
Share Share Merger surplus  Exchange Other  Retained Total
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve* reserve* profits* equity
EERH
Rt RtEE  AbtEe e Eife  Htde  RER REAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AE®TR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARET:
Note25  Note26()) Note 26(ii) Note 26(iii) Note 26(iv)
ME2s  WEE2e() MR  PER2e(i) ED)
At [ January 2020 R-Z2-ZF-A-A = 89,795 (15894) 8589 ) 1,890 29663 114000
Profit for the year ERET - - = = = = 43503 43503
Other comprehensive loss for the year EREM2HEE
Cunengy transation differences BN 28 - - - - (1243) - - (1243)
Total comprehensive income EREERNEE
for the year - - - - (1243) - 43503 42260
Capialisation lssue BMLE 2675 (2679) - - - - - -
New issue of shares from RERAREERTIRA
initial public offering 897 177591 = = = = = 178488
Share issue expenses RAEIRX = (10,164) = = = = - (10,164)
2020 interim dividend paid ENZZ-SE0HRE - - - - - - (8240) (8240)
Transfer from retained profits ERpRERT - - - 4509 - - (4529) -
At 31 December 2000 R-E-TET-A=1-H 351 254507 (15894) 13118 (146) 1,890 60397 316344
At | January 2021 N-2--%-f-H 3,572 254,507 (15,894) 13,118 (1,246) 1,890 60,397 316,344
Profit for the year EmET - - - - - - 54,528 54,528
Other comprehensive loss for the year FREM2EBRE
Currency translation differences EiEE - - - - (364) - - (364)
Total comprehensive income ERTENAEE
for the year - - - - (364) - 54,528 54,164
Transfer from retained profs BRERBET = o - 5,495 - - (5,495) -
At 31 December 2021 R_F_—F+-f=1-H 3572 254507 (15,894) 18,613 (1,810) 1890 109430 370,508
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB366,936,000 in & ZEREBEREEER -_ZE-_—4%+—A

= +—BEREUBKRERF RS FE
AR#366,936,0007C (ZZT =T 4F © A
FR#312,772,0007T) °

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB312,772,000).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 3| December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

RERBMERLRE

2021
—E_—F

RMB’000
AR®T T

1=
=

e —

Il

[V I W\ W W

7
7

AT

—F-T4

—=< —=

RMB'000
ARBTT

Profit before tax BRAE A& A 72,769 60,720
Adjustments for: AT S IBIEL A -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME¥ - BENERETE 6 771 705
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 6 464 369
Amortisation of other intangible asset Hihm B EEH 6 302 75
Finance costs MTBRA 7 205 174
Interest income FEWA - (6,335)
Impairment losses on trade receivables B HRYGIEREL
and contract assets BEREEE 206 214
74,717 55922
Increase in restricted bank deposits RRBITEZIG (100) -
Increase in trade receivables B S EWKIEE N (1,742) (20,379)
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets BREE (M), B (11,426) 778
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, other TARFOE - HfthEWRIE
receivables and other assets REMEE (320),/ B (9,879) 2,761
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B S EARIE (L) /1 (2,776) 7,059
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Hib 5 IE K ERT
and accruals BREM/ (i) 23,424 (15,438)
Increase in contract liabilities BRIEEEM 33,805 10,833
Cash generated from operations KEMSRE 106,023 41,536
Income tax paid BERAEH (22,206) (15,465)
Net cash flows from operating activities REFBMGFRENEFHE 83,817 26,071
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RAZRDAGRLAE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of other intangible asset EEHMELEE - (377)
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWME  BEKREER
and equipment (372) (586)
Increase in pledged deposits ZHRITIEFIG N (50,000) —
Net cash flows used in investing activities RERDMAREREFHE (50,372) (963)

£ 2021

HEYBREEETRAF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REREREBR

Year ended 3| December 2021

BE-FT-—F+-A=t+-ALEE

2021
—E_—F

RMB’000
AR®T T

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

RMEEBHREHERE

2020
—F-T4

—=< —=

RMB'000
ARBTT

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares RN BTSSR - 178,488
Dividends paid ENRE - (8,240)
Share issue expenses paid BRI EITHRX (3,354) (5,038)
Interest received from IPO proceeds AR ARBEEMEHEREIEHE - 6,335
Net cash flows from financing activities BERDERETREFE (3,354) 171,545
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRASSEYEMFR

EQUIVALENTS 30,091 196,653
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FReRAEEEY 369,166 173,147
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXZHTE  F8 (125) (634)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRAERREEEY

AT END OF YEAR 399,132 369,166
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReR RS SENEHBIN

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the RaBRARAT

consolidated statement of financial position RekAeEEY 20 399,132 369,166
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B ¥R AR BT RE

31 December 2021
—E-—F+-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Xingye Waulian Service Group Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) is an exempted

company with limited liability incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Islands. The Company's share were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange") on 9 March 2020
(the “Listing Date"). The address of the registered office of the Company
and the address of its principal place of business are disclosed in the section

headed “Corporate Information” in the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company became
the holding company of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group upon

completion of the reorganisation in 2019.

The Group is principally engaged in property management and value-added

services and property engineering services.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Foison Amber Development Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). The
ultimate holding company of the Company is Vistra Trust (BVI) Limited,
as the trustee of the Blossom Trust, a discretionary trust established in
the BVI on 16 August 2019 by Ms. Huang Yanping (“Ms. Huang") as the
settlor, with Ms. Zhang Huigi (“Ms. Zhang") acting as the protector and her
descendants and herself being the discretionary beneficiaries. Ms. Zhang is

also a non-executive director of the Company.

£ 2021
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Contq)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows:

1. AEIREEER @)
BB ATNER
ADFIHBATEBEHIINT -

Percentage of equity
Place and date of Nominal value interests attributable
incorporation/  of issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered  ANEEERERAL  Principal Legal form
Company name place of business share capital ~ Direct  Indirect  business of entities
AMEYL /R BROTEER/
ARER REHNRERE  EERRANEE TERE pi 7
Siu Wing Holdings Limited BVl United States Dollars 100 - Ivestment holding -
7 January 2019 ("USD")50000

KAEBARAR ARRLES S0000%T 100 - REER -
“2-NE-AtR (7))

Xingye [OT Company Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Dollars = 100 Ivestment holdng -
[T April 2019 ("HK$")10000

EXNBARLA Bk 1000077 - 00 REER s
“E-NFRAT-H )

Henan Xingye Intemet of Things People’s Republic RMB100,000000 - 100 Property Company of
Management Technology Co, Ltd* of China ("PRC")/Mainland China management limited liability
("Xingye IOT Management”) 20 October 1999

ABRRBREENRARLT PEARANE(FE))/  ARKI00000007 - 0 MxEE ARREAT
(TERNBRERE]) PR

“MAETAZTA

Henan Wuxiang Intelligent Technology Co, Ltd* PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 = 100 Property Company of
("Wuiang Intellgent”) 9 August 2017 engineering limited liabiity

ARNSERHRERAR PE/RERE  ARE0000007 - 0 HEIE BREAAT

(M)

“E—+EN\ANA

XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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I. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Conta) I. AAREEER 2
Information about subsidiaries (Cont) EBEMBARNER £)
Percentage of equity
Place and date of Nominal value interests attributable
incorporation/  of issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered  ADREEREEAL  Principal Legal form
Company name place of business share capital  Direct  Indirect  business of entities
ARAL /R BREER/
ARER REMORERE  EERRANEE TERE 3178
Henan Xingye Interet of Things Information PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Intermediary Company of
Consuting Co, Ltd* (*Xingye Consuting) 20 April 2018 leasing services  limited liabiity
ABERNREE AR RE/PERE  AR%I00000007 - 0 FAEERE  BRREAA
(TEx%8 ) “2-\fmAZTH
Henan Xingzheng Hotel Management Co, Ltd* PRC/Mainland China RMB10,00,000 = 100 Hoteland catering ~ Company of
9 July 2020 operations limited liabilty
AR EEERERAA RE/EME  ARKI00000007 - 0 BEREREE ARALAR
ZBCRELANA
@ The English names of the companies registered in the PRC represent & £ A B T MM 9 2 B A AR FE 9 ST
the best efforts made by the management of the Company in directly EXEW  HRXEWAARRAR]
translating the Chinese names of these companies as no English names ERERBARZEMP X AEE
have been registered. TRV EEBIRE -
F3R 2021

EEYHREEBERAT 99 |
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o E Y E
31 December 2021
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which comprise all
standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB"), and International Accounting Standards
("IASs") and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations approved
by the Intemational Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are

rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2021.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over
the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group the current ability to

direct the relevant activities of the investee).

‘:\ 100 XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contq) 2.1

Basis of consolidation (Contd)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such

control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

£ 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o E Y E
31 December 2021
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contq)

Basis of consolidation (Contd)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for

the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
IAS 39, IFRS 7, Phase 2
IFRS 4 and IFRS |6

Amendment to IFRS |6 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021
(early adopted)

»

‘:\ 102 XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—f+-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont4)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:

(@ Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS |6 address
issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"). The amendmenits
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be
updated without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets and
liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and the new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit changes
required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise
on transition are dealt with through the normal requirements of IFRS
9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as a
risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the
hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose additional
information to enable users of financial statements to understand
the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity's financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group as the Group does not have any interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o E Y E
31 December 2021
—E-—F+-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont4)

®)

Amendment to IFRS |6 issued in March 202 | extends the availability
of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by |2 months. Accordingly,
the practical expedient applies to rent concessions for which any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due
on or before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions for
applying the practical expedient are met. The amendment is effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after | April
2021 with any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at the beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier

application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on | January 2021.
However, the Group has not received covid-|9-related rent
concessions and plans to apply the practical expedient when it

becomes applicable within the allowed period of application.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS [0
and IAS 28

IFRS |7
Amendments to IFRS |7

Amendments to IFRS |7

Amendments to IAS |

Amendments to IAS | and IFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to |AS |2

Amendments to IAS |6
Amendments to |AS 37

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts®*

Initial Application of IFRS |7 and
IFRS9 — Comparative Informatiorn’

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transactior’

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use!

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract’

Amendments to IFRS I, IFRS 9,
[llustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41!

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020, IFRS

4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers
to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before |

January 2023

£ 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o E Y E
31 December 2021
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (Contq)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable

to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle
for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities
and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC
21| if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC
21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from | January 2022. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be affected by

these amendments on the date of transition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (Contq)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor's
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest
in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion of a
broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However,

the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS | Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current
or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity's right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the
end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that
date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity
will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments
also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
| January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.

£ 2021
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (Contq)

Amendments to IAS | Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in an entity's
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement
2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to IAS | are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments
to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently assessing the impact

of the amendments on the Group's accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in accounting
estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting estimates are
defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after | January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that
period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected

to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (Contq)

Amendments to IAS |2 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2023 and shall be
applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions
other than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to |AS |6 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022 and shall be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have

any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (Contq)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under |IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g, an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after | January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for
which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at
the date of initial application without restating the comparative information.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group's financial statements.

2.3 E R MR{E [ R A R Y B R B

BHREE ()

Re B F 375 (BT A) %
B ARBRER g ST ERIE 375
HMEVERBEEEMS BTTE
AWK AR B IR G H HEZHBE AR
Ko BEHNBEEHBOXNABER
TZAE NG E XA (PN EES
TRME) REEITE L EEER
HMpAADER (Bl RETELD
FTRAYMZE  BEIRKBEEBEBEOTE
BRANUNRAHEERNEERA) o
—MRITBRAAREES QI EEE
E - RIFBBESHABRAEFH
WHE - BRITBIEEA « ZFER]
R-ZTEZ_—F—HA—HkzZ &%
WEEHRES  WKERNER
REBXRERAZSEITINFERS
HRFGERABITEMEREANE
Ao RnETIRFER - MIXEAZS
BRI EM 2 ERERAE S
RIERBHAZ AR ARE - m
HASS|LLRER - ZZE5] BN
TeHASEMGERRELAEMNE
R & o

Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—f+-A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (Contq)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets out amendments

to IFRS |, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS

41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to the

Group are as follows:

£ 2021

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity includes
when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial
liability are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or lender on the other's behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to

have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

IFRS |6 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example |3
accompanying IFRS [6. This removes potential confusion regarding
the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS 6. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on the

Group's financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic

best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the

use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Fair value measurement (Contad)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level |  — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.

£ 2021
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, and non-current assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of
the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g, a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of

cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Contd)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's family and

that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of the Group

or of a parent of the Group;

or

£ 2021
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EXEBORBE @)
POLICIES (Contd)
Related parties (Contd) B (&)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: b) BEZRERBENSE TINUEM
—IR{RMF
(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group; () ZEBEAEEBR-—
SEKE QA

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or iy —EBAS—EB(HS

of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity); —EBHNERA - HE
NCIEAEEN Y- PNCIDL:Y
BENRRAERE

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third (il ZEBEREELSR—
party; F=HEERE

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy " ERBRE=71EED
entity is an associate of the third entity; BETLE WME—ESR

SRE =T ERNEE
N A]

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit v) ZEB/AEEINEXR
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the SEEEENERBHME
Group; BN 55 5% 37 ) B B A2 A

B I

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (viy ZEBXQBEMMALT
identified in (a); PEHISERIES]

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the (i) R@OEBEEALTHE
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the BEEATXENEZLE
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and B(HZERBEARE

EEEABNEP—F
KA K&

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (i) MASEXAEEFE
provides key management personnel services to the Group or NAREHFEEEAE
to the parent of the Group. RENERIEMBE

R EMK B RA]

»
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its

working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as

individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as

follows:

9.5%
19% to 31.67%

Machinery

Electronic equipment and others

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Contd)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite

useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Research and development costs

Al research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised
and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility
of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development expenditure which does

not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBEBRE 2)
POLICIES (Contd)
Leases HE

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@)  Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease

terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 5to 10 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of

the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,

depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

£ 2021
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

Leases (Contd)

Group as a lessee (Contd)

®)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g, a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in

assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently

measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI")
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,

irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Investments and other financial assets (Contd)

Initial recognition and measurement (Contd)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial
assets which are not held within the aforementioned business models are

classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established

by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or

impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERSHBEBRE 2)

POLICIES (Contd)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e,, removed

from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group

has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Derecognition of financial assets (Contd)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a |2-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-

looking information.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

General approach (Contd)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 30 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual

cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets

which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage | —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to |2-month

ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or credit-impaired) and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as payables.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables and

accruals and lease liabilities.

2.4 EXETHEHRE R

TRMEERME#)

BEr %

BRI EmEBAMEN D X AEEHA
ERER A EM TAREARE D
PHESERFERENEEM
T AEBEAGEAEHERD
EEEE - REBHLRE  A5HE
TEEAREERRNEE Mg
BESREANZHBHEEEE
BREERE AEEEREBE
EEBEBLCHRELBEER - Wit
BB AR BIRE R ERRTE R
RHE -

ETRAE

IR R 5T E
TREBENRVRERR D BEREN
BA °

BESRA BV RAFENRE
BB X HRAHER

AEENEHBERBES MR
A~ HtEMRAEMETEARE
ERE-

Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—f+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in

profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have
a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash

management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including time
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to

use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage

of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the provision of property
engineering services for general repairs of defects occurring during
the warranty period of two years. Provisions for these assurance-type
warranties granted by the Group are recognised based on sales volume
and estimation of the level of repairs, discounted to their present values as

appropriate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,

either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and

practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,

except:

(i)  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
consolidated and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

(i) in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Income tax (Contd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

(i)  when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business consolidated and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

(i) in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Income tax (Contd)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that

the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange

for those goods or services.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the goods or services provided in the ordinary course of the

Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of taxes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

Revenue recognition (Contd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Contd)

@)

®)

©

Property management and value-added services

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed amount
for services provided on a semi-annually basis and revenue is
recognised over the service period on a straight-line basis because
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the Group.

For value-added services, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the related value-added services are rendered. Payment of the
transaction is due immediately when the value-added services are

rendered to the customer.

Property engineering services

Revenue from the provision of property engineering services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the Group's
performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date. The input method recognises
revenue based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred
relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of the property

engineering services.

Club house services, including catering and ancillary services

Revenue from club house services, including catering and ancillary
services, is recognised at a point in time when food, beverages
and other services are delivered to or rendered to the customer,

generally on the acceptance of the services by the customer.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Revenue recognition (Contd)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter

period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting policies for

impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the

related goods or services to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. The subsidiaries operating in Mainland
China are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme. All contributions to the Central Pension Scheme vest
immediately and there are no forfeited contributions under the Central
Pension Scheme which may be used by the Group to reduce its existing

level of contributions or contributions payable in future years.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the

shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company's articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised

immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on

settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Foreign currencies (Contd)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the

advance consideration.

The functional currencies of each entity in the Group may be the
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to

those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

Foreign currencies (Contd)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income

relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into

RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the
determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with

customers:

Determining the timing of satisfaction of property engineering services

The Group concluded that revenue for property engineering services is
to be recognised over time because the Group's performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an

enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of dividends

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding corporate income
taxes relating to the unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China that are subject to withholding taxes.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax liabilities, based upon the likely distribution level of such
earnings from these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. The amount
of deferred tax liabilities arising from the withholding tax associated with
the investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for the year ended 3|
December 2021 was RMB590,000 (31 December 2020: 590,000). Further

detalils are contained in note 14 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Measurement of progress toward complete satisfaction of
property engineering services

The Group uses the input method to measure the progress toward
satisfaction of the performance obligations, and specifically, the proportion
of actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs. The Group
determined that the input method is the best method in measuring the
progress of the property engineering services because there is a direct
relationship between the Group's effort (i.e., costs incurred) and the
transfer of goods and services to the customer. The Group recognises
revenue on the basis of the costs expended relative to the total expected
costs to complete the services. Actual costs incurred include direct and
indirect costs in the process of transferring goods and services from the
Group to customers. The Group believes that the contract price is based
on costs. Therefore, the proportion of actual costs incurred relative to
the total expected costs can reflect the progress toward satisfaction of
property engineering services. Since the duration of the performance
obligation is relatively long and it may fall in two accounting periods, the
Group will review the contract, revise the budget and adjust the revenue

accordingly as the contract is carried forward.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Estimation uncertainty (Contd)

Provisions

Significant management estimates are involved in the determination of
the cost of assurance-type warranty to be incurred during the warranty
period. Accordingly, management exercises considerable judgment in
determining whether there is a present obligation as a result of a past
event at the reporting date, whether it is more likely than not that such
warranty services will result an outflow of resources and whether the
amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated with reference to the
size of the project, relevant correspondence and contracts with customers.
Management estimates the cost for warranty services with regard to the

Group's experience in addressing such matters.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables
and contract assets. The provision rates are based on ageing for groupings
of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by

customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the

forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Contd)

Estimation uncertainty (Contd)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets (Contd)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group's trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in notes |7

and |9 to the financial statements, respectively.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary's
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit

rating).
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their services and has three reportable operating segments as

follows:

(@) Property management and value-added services

(b)  Property engineering services

() Others*

e The “others” segment comprises clubhouse services, including catering and

ancillary services.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit/loss, which.is a measure of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently
with the Group's profit before tax except that head office income and

expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 4, REPTZER (7)

Segment revenue pan L6
2021 2020
—R—_—%F —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Property management and value-added services I3 E 12 R IB(ERTS 228,374 165,008
Property engineering services S E MRS 45,722 45,904
Others Hitb 7,564 2276
281,660 213,188
Segment results
2020
—E——F —ECEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Property management and value-added services I3 %E 12 RIB(ERTS 76,737 60,875
Property engineering services Y% TIZRRTS 2,781 3722
Others HAth (3,687) (157)
Segment results DELELE 75,831 64,440
Reconciliation: ik -
Unallocated income RO BEKA 645 6,620
Unallocated expenses RO (3,707) (10,340)
Profit before tax Bt Al A 72,769 60,720
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RESHER (@)
PDEAER B BN ETERME
BERIAF - ZREEERE BERIFL

LOHAE - DEMABETEEEL

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 4.

Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the same way as in the
financial statements. These assets and liabilities are allocated based on the

operations of the segment, the segment liabilities exclude deferred tax

2020

—B-—F —EB-EF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT R ARBTT

Property management and value-added services  #1% & 2 N 38 (E AR7% 471,425 355,619

Property engineering services V)5 T2 AR 55,916 64,579

Others Hity 596 184

Segment assets DEBEE 527,937 420,382
Reconciliation: Hhk -

Unallocated assets ROMEE 4,292 9872

Total assets BERE 532,229 430,254

Segment liabilities

2020

—E-—-F —E-EH

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R AR®T T

Property management and value-added services )% & ¥ I8 (B ARTE 141,552 91,14l

Property engineering services Y TIRARTE 17,860 20,473

Others HAth 469 549

Segment liabilities SEEE 159,881 112,163
Reconciliation: HEE -

Unallocated liabilities ANERE 1,840 ,747

Total liabilities BfERE 161,721 113910

F4§ 202 RAWBEBEMERAT 143 )

liability and tax payable.

Segment assets
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 4, REPTZER (7)

Other segment information Hith &R
Year ended 31 December 202/ BE-_F-_—F1+-A=1+—-HI
FE
Property
management
and Property
value-added engineering
services services Total
NEEER IES
RERS IRR% Hitt )
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT R ARBTR ARBTR
Additions to property, plant and REWE - BERRE
equipment 276 18 78 372
Depreciation of property, plant and m% - BERRENE
equipment 723 36 12 171
Amortisation of other intangible asset Hitmy B s 302 - - 302
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (EREEENE 275 - 189 464
Impairment losses on trade receivables & ZEMFHIERAH
and contract assets BEREEE 115 66 25 206
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE—E-_FF+-FA=1+—HL
FE
Property
management
and Property
value-added engineering
services services Others Total
NREER UES
SE{B AR TieMRAs Aty st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTRT  AR®TT  ARETRH
Additions to property, plant and REME - BERRE
equipment 512 74 - 586
Additions to other intangible asset REEMENEE 377 - - 377
Depreciation of property, plant and Mm% - BERRENE
equipment 688 17 = 705
Amortisation of other intangible asset Hith®Y & ER R 75 = = 75
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (EREEENE 274 = 95 369
Impairment losses on trade receivables & ZEYFHIER AL
and contract assets BERERRE 8 206 - 214
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Conta) 4. REDHER (2
Geographical information & &R
Since the Group has operation in Mainland China only, no further operating HRAEEEERE A EE - i)
geographical information analysis is presented. W2 — TR EHRER DT -
Information about major customers FHREEEZEFHNESR
Revenue of approximately RMB46,835,000 (2020: RMB27,597,000) and HARM46,835000L(ZF=F
RMB25,693,000 (2020: RMB31,021,000) were derived from sales of F : AK®27,597,0007T) kAR
services to a group of entities which are controlled by Zensun Enterprises 25,693,000 (ZE =T F : ARK
Group and Ever Diamond Group, respectively. 31,021,0007T ) By Y2 53 51 2R B R [A)
ERAEREEFoKESEPTES S
—HERIHERT -
Except for those mentioned above, there was no single customer from BT R RN - REMmEHR
which the revenue amounted to 10% or more of the Group's total BMEREE —RFHRREAEER
revenue at the end of the reporting period. W ES4BFE 1 0% A £ ©
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS 5. Wrak - HMWA - Hftla
AND LOSSES KE#E
An analysis of revenue is as follows: Wa DT -
2021 2020
— e —ECTHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT
Types of services AR T XA A
Property management and value-added services I3 %E 12 R IB(ERTS 228,374 165,008
Property engineering services Y% TIEARTS 45,722 45,904
Others HAl 7,564 2,276
281,660 213,188
3R 2021 FEYHREEBAERAA

145 |



5.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o E Y E
31 December 2021
—FHF+ZA=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS
AND LOSSES (Contd)

5.

W - HAWA - Efbiiss

KEiE (@)

2021
—E-—F

RMB’000
AR®T T

2020
—T-g

— = —=

RMB'000
ARETIT

Timing of revenue recognition W SRR B
At a point in time R NB]0F B2
Value-added services A PRTS 5,039 7,071
Others Hity 7,564 2276
Over time R—ER A E]
Property management YEER 223,335 157937
Property engineering services S E MRS 45,722 45904
281,660 213,188

The property management and value-added services were provided to
properties under management in which mainly were developed by the
Group's related parties — Ever Diamond Global Company Limited and
its subsidiaries (collectively, “Ever Diamond Group'), Zensun Enterprises
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Zensun Enterprises Group') and
Henan Zensun Corporate Development Group Company Limited and its

subsidiaries (collectively, “Zensun Development Group”).

The following table shows the revenue recognised in relation to contract

liabilities carried forward from the end of the prior year:

MEEEREEREREETES
ME ZEEENEEIEHAKE
BRRE T — K EIRIRA R A B A
BLR (MM KERREE]) - IE
HEXERARLENB AR (5
BIEREXKE ) RAEERD
XEREEERET AR LRENE
RAE (AR EREREE DR -

TREIB E—FEREENEH

BEATHERES -

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBFT

Types of services AR T 2R A
Property engineering services Y TIRARTE 2,202 747
Property management and value-added services % & ¥ I8 (B fRT% 38,033 28,655
40,235 29,402
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—f+-A=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS
AND LOSSES (Contd)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Property management

The performance obligation is satisfied over time and payments are
generally paid in advance. For property management services, the Group
recognises revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and the amount corresponds directly with the value to the
customer of the Group's performance to date. The Group has elected
the practical expedient of not to disclose the remaining performance
obligations for property management. The majority of the property

management service contracts do not have a fixed term.

Value-added services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time and payments are
generally due when the services are rendered. For value-added services,
they are rendered in a short period of time and there is no unsatisfied

performance obligation at the end of each reporting period.

Property engineering services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered
and payment is generally due within 30 days from the date of billing. A
certain percentage of payment is retained by customers until the end of
the retention period as the Group's entitlement to the final payment is
conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over

a certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

£ 2021

5.

s - HA - Efbiizs
REBE @)

BB

AR AR E R 4B R
T

WREE

ZBEHBEER —BREREZERK - 3
BEREN - sLEE R RN
5 ARERASEARMAARE
Mo RERN D MABSEERE
HEASBEZSRAEPELNELD
EBE AEBCEZEEREERD
X MEBMXEENG TEOR
£ REDMEERRIEE WAL &
[ £ HARR

BERT
ZEABEENE R EENX - M
FBE R RGERER DRSS -
SIBERBME - ARG RS
REGERRARE - R EREH
RIEARZRNBHOEE ©

Ve

ZBAETR RBERMREN
RERER - BT ERE A MR
FT30KREHAES - RPEREBET
BOLNREESRESRER - 1
H A #495] B AN = B U ER R HA 4 3%
BRI R A B B AR E ) — ER B
MAYREEESEME ©

*
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—%+-A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS 5. s - HtA - Hittlkz
AND LOSSES (Contd) KEiE @)
Performance obligations (Contd) BREEE)
Property engineering services (Contd) YEIERD ()
The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations REBREHR  SPEEVETIRERR
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) of property engineering services as at BERTEAEE CREKSE DK
the end of each reporting period are as follows: ER)NRZSEBIAT -

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-ETF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Amounts expected to be recognized as revenue:  TERTERR AWK S FE

Within | year —FN 54,603 52,963
| to 2 years —EMF 16,127 19,909
2 to 3 years ME=F 15,810 3,890
86,540 76,762
Clubhouse services, including catering and ancillary services EHTRE - GIFEUREERYE
The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when food, ZRABERMEFRRHRY - K
beverages and other services are delivered to or rendered to the customer o N B A AR 7S HO B BRI RK, ¢ AR
and payment is generally due within 30 days from delivery. There is no BERBRNEF30RAEHEE
unsatisfied performance obligation for club house services, including e REREPRITEFSBE TR
catering and ancillary services, at the end of each reporting period. % BB MR EREHARER
BHEME -

»
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—%+-A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS 5. Wrak - WA - Eftla
AND LOSSES (Cont) KEiE @)
An analysis of other income, other gains and losses is as follows: HAb YA ~ Ho U a5 K B 18 3 #r 4n
T
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFTT
Government grants* T B * 6,029 911
Interest income FLEHA 10,326 8,948
Foreign exchange differences, net PE W ERRHER 214 (424)
16,569 9,435
e Government grants related to income that are received or receivable as * BT R EL e R B E R XS
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose B ESE B ARRAE KA
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related BB ST S AR R B 45 T B s B 7%
costs. These government grants are recognised in profit or loss in the > E WK kAR -
period in which they become receivable. % 5 U #76 BE A JE LA A e B HA

IR IERTER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% SR R P R

31 December 2021
—E-—F+-A=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIATEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBNBRBANEF SR (5T
MNIATRIBESFH :
2021 2020
—E——F —ZE=-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥ETT
Cost of services provided PR (AR TS AR 187,854 126,449
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERBETE
equipment (note 13) (B¥sE13) 771 705
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note |5) EREEERE (ME15) 464 369
Amortisation of other intangible asset H A& =i 302 75
Research and development expenses HEER 4,076 1,88
Auditors' remuneration 2GR 1,450 1,300
Employee benefit expense EERAFX
(including directors’ remuneration): (BEESEHM)
Wages and salaries ITERF® 38,394 28,009
Pension scheme contributions IRIREET B 4,882 246
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net bEH (Wes), B8 F%E (214) 424
Impairment losses on trade receivables B 5 WA K
and contract assets BREEREREE 206 214
Listing expenses MR - 7953
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BMAEEAA

2021
—E_—F

RMB’000
ARBT T

Interest on lease liabilities (note |5)

HERBENHNE (HREIS)

205

2020
—

RMB’000
ARBT T

174
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o EY I E
31 December 2021
—F-HF+ZA=1—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

8. EERESITHRAEHMN

BE LA - BECRUEN) %
383(1)(a) ~ (b) * () R(NIER(AT
(BEBEE=FSER) RO F280H
BNEENRERTBRABRAEH

BT
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFIT
Fees ke - —
Other emoluments: Ee -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERREYHS 832 668
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIEER 26 |
858 669

(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIFHITES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

year were as follows:

AEEXNTFBIFNTES
ST

2021 2020
—E2-—F —ECEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBFIT

Mr. Feng Zhidong IER A 120 100
Mr. Zhou Sheng Bk EE 108 100
Mr. Xu Chun RERE 120 100
348 300

£ 2021

HEYBREEETRAF

*
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—%+-A=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S 8.

REMUNERATION (Contd)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (Contd)
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

non-executive directors during the year (2020: Nil).

(b) Executive director and non-executive directors

ESERESTHRAEHMH

(&)

(a) BIUFHITES ()
FRREREMN B ERITE
EMHMMe (ZZT=2F :

T).

(b) FITEERFIITES

Salaries,

allowances
and benefits
in kind

e 2ER
BYRz=
RMB’000

ARBT T

B2 ——%F
+-A=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December 202 |

Pension
scheme
contributions Total
RirE
st BN et
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRE AR®TR

Executive director: HITES :
Mr. Zhu Jie* RANTHE* 484 26 510
Non-executive director: FHEHITES :
Ms. Zhang R - = =
Mr. Wang Jinhu FERREE = = =
Mr. Liu Zhengiang b bt = = =
484 26 510
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 R M A
31 December 2021
—E-—f+-A=+—H

T =

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERESITHAEHM
REMUNERATION (Contd) (%)
(b) Executive director and non-executive directors (b) HITESRHIHTES
(Contd) (&)

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme

in kind contributions Total

e 2R a3 Nea
BEYHaS T EILEK st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARBTT ARETE

Year ended 3| December 2020 & ZE —ZT —Z4F
+=—RA=1+—HIFE

Executive director: BITES :
Mr. Zhu Jie* RN 368 369
Non-executive director: IEHITES -
Ms. Zhang SR L - - -
Mr. Wang Jinhu FERESE - - -
Mr. Liu Zhengjang &b bt = = =
368 369
& Mr. Zhu Jie is a chief executive officer of the Company. He also @ KANFEEBRNRB T
served as chief executive officer in Xingye IOT Management. His o G IMEEEEY A
remuneration disclosed above included the remuneration for the EIRMITEARE o ST
services rendered by him as the chief executive. B ENME R ES BT
B AR R ARG € -
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief FERX - BEEESZESITHA
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the B ES R = R E A
year (2020: Nil). TH(ZBE_TF T) o

4 2021 REWBEBEBERAT 153 )
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o E Y E
31 December 2021
—FHF+ZA=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the years included one director
(2020: one), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2020: four)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of

the Company are as follows:

hEREFHMES

EFEN AEmaTMEE RIS
RB—REE(ZT-_TF:—R)"
HEMFBEEN EXHEs - F
W AEBKTHEE(ZEZZTF -
M8 )ERRRESHZETHRAR
M= EMESFMFBET

2021 2020

—E-—-F —E-ETF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREBT T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EUREDA S 1,516 1,331
Pension scheme contributions RIRE T B 132 5
1,648 1,336

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

employees whose remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

N FIATEHENIFES RIFR
=ITHA B &= # e 8 & A g

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including directors and
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o EY I E
31 December 2021
—F-HF+ZA=1—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are

domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and BVI, the

Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC and the respective
regulations, except for Xingye Consulting which enjoyed a preferential
enterprise tax rate of 5% during the reporting period, the subsidiaries
which operate in Mainland China are subject to enterprise income tax at a

rate of 25% on the taxable income.

10. FRGHRX

AR EARAEERE D AR
ST R AR R RS T
S5 R 0 2 K BB I 0 19
Bi -

RERSHEREBRZESRA
MOER - AEBBERFEEE N
RB R SHMEAFAFN o

REB(CPEARAMBEEEMEH
B) RERBRE - REXZAR
BERZEBELEMERBER%
S - R B E B R RA
IR A 5% AN TS °

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T ARETT

Current BN ER 18,474 16,527
Deferred (note 14) IRAE (T 14) (233) 690
Total tax charge for the year FANRIBR X 25 18,241 17217

£ 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—%+-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd) 10. FREHBAS (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the RERZEMBRRMEREER
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of its subsidiaries are BETE B R ST B BBR T AT A1 A
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation MIAR X IR BR M R ETIE
of the applicable rate (i.e, the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, is X ERIERRE (BEER
as follows: R)EBRETRAEERIOT ¢
2021 2020
—B-—F —B-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARMT T
Profit before tax BRI A 72,769 60,720
Tax at the statutory rate of 25% 1R25% 5 E M EET B 18,192 15,180
Different/preferential tax rate applicable to M A RlE A A
subsidiaries TR/ B E 314 570
Expenses not deductible for tax AR B S 54 10
Income not subject to tax BERBUA 71) (169)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the EREENFENEAR]
distributable profits of the Group's Ao ke AEE
PRC subsidiaries T | 0%EV & - 1,414
Effect on opening deferred tax of decrease THEBEREFIER
in rates EMIB 2 B - 22
Tax losses not recognised REERTIAEE 380 920
Effect of super deduction of research and B ABEIRNTE
development expense (628) =
Total tax expense for the year FNTIER < 58 18,241 17217
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—%+-A=+—H

I1. DIVIDENDS 1. &2
2021

—E-—F —ETHF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

Proposed final dividend HREAREIAR R 8,180 =
Interim dividend declared and paid Bk SR AR AR B = 8,240
The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend in respect of ExeRaEn 8RR, 25078l (48
the Year of HK2.50 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB2.045 cents) BERHAREE20459 ) IR ARFE
per share, amounting to a total dividend of HK$10,000,000 (equivalent REAME B - BB AR%EE 4 10,000,00078
to approximately RMBS8, 180,000). Such final dividend will be distributed TC (FEE R ARES,180,0007T) ©
out of the Company's share premium account, subject to the approval FREREREBRREF R &
by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These 1% ZARHIRR B 8 AN RIS i
consolidated financial statements did not reflect this dividend payable. BIRP DK - ZEEA U EHREI

ERRZEMNRE -

Interim dividend of HK2.32 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB2.06 & 499,280,000/ 7T (FHE R4 A

cents) per share, amounting to approximately HK$9,280,000 (equivalent R #8,240,0007T) /) + BARR BB A%

to approximately RMB8,240,000) was declared during the year ended 3| 2328 (FHERHOAREE2.065)

December 2020 and paid on 9 October 2020. EREE_E_ZEF+_A=+—
HIEFEERIN-_ZT_FTF+H
NEIRST e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o E Y E
31 December 2021
—FHF+ZA=+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 400,000,000 (2020:
381,369,863) in issue during the year ended 3| December 2021.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 3| December 2021 and 2020.

12. BAREERERSGEAR

EERER

BREAZFSHEIRES QG E
BREEREABRLEFRG R
BHE-_FT-_—F+-H=+—H
IFFEBEBETL @R INE TS
#4400,000,000/% (ZZE =T F :
381,369,863 FTE B ©

BHE_ T - —FR-_ZF-_FTF+—
B=+t—HILEE AEEIER

BITEEEE T AR -

BREABHNWAEER

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

2021 2020
—E-—F | CZECEH

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBT

Earnings BH
AEERERNREERTR
FRE QR L ERERS
BB AEEREF 54,528 43,503

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent used in the basic earnings

per share calculation

Number of shares

RO BE

Shares g
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 515 B ARE N K #58 2 1) Bf
issue during the year used in the basic earnings ERBFRETT

BB AR 8k

400,000,000 381,369,863

per share calculation

»
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—%+-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ - BERRE

Electronic
equipment
Machinery and others Total
e T
Has R HAts Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR
31 December 2021 —E—F
+=-HA=+-—H
At | January 2021 N_ZT_—F—H—H
Cost DN 177 3,958 4,135
Accumulated depreciation BFHnE (55) (2,008) (2,063)
Net carrying amount AREHE 122 1,950 2,072
At | January 2021, net of RZT_—%—H—QH"
accumulated depreciation MR RFHTE 122 1,950 2,072
Additions NE 63 309 372
Depreciation provided during FRTERE
the year (18) (753) (77)
At 31 December 2021, net of N_T - —F
accumulated depreciation +=—A=+—8"
MR EEAE 167 1,506 1,673
At 3| December 2021 KT —F
+=—A=+—8:
Cost (DN 240 4,267 4,507
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (73) (2,761) (2,834)
Net carrying amount AREFE 167 1,506 1,673
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—F+-A=+—H

13. ¥ - BERRE @)

Electronic
equipment
Machinery and others Total
BErRE
Hees Ko E A st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT ARBTFTT AREBFIT
31 December 2020 —EEHF
+=-HA=+-—H
At | January 2020: R-ZZE_TF—H—H
Cost [DZN 134 3415 3,549
Accumulated depreciation BFHnE 41 (1,317) (1,358)
Net carrying amount AREDFE 93 2,098 2,191
At | January 2020, net of R-_ZE_TF—A—H"
accumulated depreciation KR RFHTE 93 2,098 2,191
Additions NE 43 543 586
Depreciation provided during FRFTERE
the year (14) (691 (705)
At 31 December 2020, net of i e
accumulated depreciation +=—A=+—H"
R RetinE 122 1,950 2,072
At 3| December 2020: R-F_FF
+=—A=+—8":
Cost XA 177 3958 4,135
Accumulated depreciation Z2EHE (55) (2,008) (2,063)
Net carrying amount REDHE 122 1,950 2,072
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— i —

=

14. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—HF+ZA=t—H

14, EERIE

EEBAEE

1=
=

I

R R
It

———

\I

7

EEHBREENFREEWT

Impairment Tax
losses losses Accruals Total
HEER  HEBE  EIER At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR¥TRT AR®TR
Deferred tax assets as at | January 2020 R-E_ZF-A—HH
ELHIRAE 85 5 576 666
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the statement FENEA/ (KRB BEE
of profit or loss during the year (note 10) HIERERIA (K15t 10) 168 ) (263) (100)
Deferred tax assets as at 3| December 2020 —T%F ¢Jr A=t—-H
and | January 202 | R_Z_—%—-R—AK
ELHIBAE 253 - 313 566
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the statement RN/ (BB BRE
of profit or loss during the year (note 10) HOIEREREIR (PR 10) (106) - 339 233
Deferred tax assets as at 3| December 202 RZITZ—F
+ZA=+-H
METHBAE 147 - 652 799

Deferred tax liability

EEBEEE

Withholding

Gross deferred tax liability at | January 2020

Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or

R-_F_FTF—H—H#H
EETRIA R ERER

FRRBERINBAELERE (H:E10)

taxes

Rtk
RMB’000
AR®T T

£ 2021

loss during the year (note 10) 590
Gross deferred tax liability at 31 December 2020 N _EE¢+ A=+—H
and | January 2021 );27 T_—F—H—HK
EETIAR R 590
Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or FARBRRBRARESE (FiEE10)
loss during the year (note 10) -
Gross deferred tax liability at 31 December 202 | BA_ T —F+= )EJ +—Aa#
EERIAR RAE 590
HEYBREEETRAF

*
\
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o E Y E
31 December 2021
—E-—F+-A=+—H

14. DEFERRED TAX (Contad)

Deferred tax liability (Conta)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of RMB496,000 (2020:
542,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the

tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 0% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from | January 2008 and applies to earnings after | January
2008. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland

China in respect of earnings generated from | January 2008.

The Board distributed certain dividends to overseas holding companies
from the distributable profit earned by Xingye IOT Management in
Mainland China from | January 2020 to 31 December 2020. Therefore,
the Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by Xingye
IOT Management established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
from | January 2020 to 3| December 2020 and a deferred tax liability
amounting to RMB590,000 was recognised regarding the withholding taxes
as at 31 December 2020.

14, ELEBIEH (@)

EEHEBEEE#E)
AEEREBEEZHEBEBAA
R#496000C (ZE-FF : AR
#5542,0007T) -+ A AR PR HAK S5 5%
EEXEBBRZARBEAER R
o ARELEHIBEEKREEIRS
FroMBAR LW ERZES
BERRAELEHBEEE MARRR
BRI S B R TR 2 ERTB A F
LAKSHP] T8 A 2 BEIEES 18 -

BIEPESEMESHE  HHRFEH
A b 3% 37 K9 SN B 4% B 1 2 1) SN B
REETERREBU 0%/ TEI
HeoZReE _ZEZN\F—H—H
BEM  BEBRR-_ZEZN\F—A
—BZENEF - i HEINE
BENREERE ZEERKEHE -
AP EABREMTEMRR o HRA
£E - ERAREARI0% - Flt - &
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o EY I E
31 December 2021
—E-—f+-A=+—H

14. DEFERRED TAX (Contad)

Deferred tax liability (Contd)

For the year ended 3| December 2021, no additional deferred tax liability
has been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted eamings in 2021 that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it
is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earings for the

year ended 3| December 2021 in the foreseeable future.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with the
investment in the subsidiary in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately RMB 129,860,000
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB72,268,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of

dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

£ 2021

1=
=

-
S HHHH R
e e—

14, IEFEBIE (@)
EEHEEEE)
HE_T-—F+-A=+—HIL
FE - WESRAEBEFBREAME
M A RIZBRMTBINB A RE L&
FI e T &S M TR B R (W BE
SNERERIEBE - EFRA - BE
TR+ ZA=1+—HL*F
B ZEMBARRABERGRDT
RNAlge g D IkE AR -

R-—TE-_—F+-_fA=+—H #&
M R R IR T IE B EA R R B A
B AR E B BNRREZRE
EERA) B AR5 129,860,0007T (=
TTF  ARKET22680007T) ©

AR ) A B B RO A 2 S S A
SERPSHER -
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15. LEASES I15. fHE

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts of buildings used in its operations. Leases
of buildings have lease terms between 5 and |0 years. Generally, the
Group s restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group, and there is no lease contract that include extension and

termination options and variable lease payment.

REBEREBEA
REBHERLEPERNEEYL
HESY  -BEFHENHEAZE
105 o —M 5 @ ARBEREREHIR
AEBEHIEEREREESE -
I B I BB IEEEA R AR IE B IR DA K
AEHEENFHNEESL -

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EFEEZE
The carrying amount of the Group's right-of-use assets and the A& AR EBRFERHFEA
movements during the year are as follows: BEENREBRE
Buildings
BF
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARMT T
As at | January R—H—H 4,201 2,676
Additions INE - 1,894
Depreciation charge WEEZH (464) (369)
As at 31 December W+=—B=+—8H 3,737 4201
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15. LEASES (Conta)

The Group as a lessee (Contd)
(b) Lease liabilities

o EY I E
31 December 2021
—F-HF+ZA=1—H

T -
T
S e —

15. HE @)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

the year are as follows:

REBEREBAE)

(b) HEERE
NTE#HINAEBRFRNEES
ERNRAENKES :

Buildings
BF

2021
—E_—F

2020
— BB

— = —=

RMB'000
ARETT

RMB’000
ARBT T

Carrying amount at | January R—A—B/REE 5,096 4,054
New leases HE - 1,894
Accretion of interest recognised FAERNN LR

during the year 205 174
Amount settled through a debt transfer B REREERRGE TN

agreement (note 30(b)) S8 (M4EE30(b)) (197) (1,026)
Carrying amount at 3| December R+ A=+—HBHERmE 5,104 5,096
Analysed into: DA

Current portion BERER 1,514 l,104

Non-current portion FERNERER 3,590 3,992

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 30 to the

financial statements.

During the year, the Group do not entered into lease contracts of
buildings with a related party (2020: RMB1,894,000). Included in
lease liabilities are amounts due to a related party after the debt
transfer (note 30(b)) of RMB4,81 1,000 as at 31 December 202 |

(2020: RMB4,803,000).

£ 2021

HEaEN Mo EERY
TERAEMIEE30 °

FR - ANEEEBE ST E
RAIVEFHEAN(ZZ=F
£ AR¥,894,0007T) ° B
—E-—%+=ZRA=+—H"
HEAEREERERSE (M
#E30(b) ) FE 1 — % BB 5 30E
AR#4811,000 (ZEF
F : AR¥48030007T) °
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—%+-A=+—H

I15. LEASES (Conta) I15. #HE &)

The Group as a lessee (Contd) TEEEREBA(E)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) BHEEREZER LW
leases are as follows: T
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBBMNMERX 205 174
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets EREEENTEER 464 369
Total amount recognised in profit or loss B TR R B 669 543
16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSET 16. EthELEE
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
Patents and licences BRI R AR®T T ARETT
Carrying amount at | January R—A—ArREE 302 =
Additions NE - 377
Amortisation provided during the year FABIERE (302) (75)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ RA=+—HMKEE - 302
Cost DN - 377
Accumulated amortisation Rt = (/3)
Net carrying amount BREFE - 302

HZE2021F 12831 HILFE » @R
HEAEBTHBEEE  AKER
JE #6155 AR T 3HE 2 A R #302,000 7T
B EF T A o

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group decided to write off
the patents and licences with a net carrying amount of RMB302,000 due to

the relevant business is not planned to operate.
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES

— Y -
-\EEEEEREEE’
e —

17. EZBURIR

2021
—E-—F —ET-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
Trade receivables B 5 MEWGIR 40,587 38,845
Impairment A (542) (451)
40,045 38,394

The Group's trading terms for rendering property management and
value-added services with its customers are mainly payment in advance.
The trading terms for property engineering services, club house services,
including catering and ancillary services are mainly on credit and the
credit period is generally within 30 days. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over

its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Included in trade receivables are amounts due from related parties of
RMB31,394,000 as at 3| December 2021 (2020: RMB34,426,000).

The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates to their fair value.

£ 2021

AEBSETFPREEYREE MIE
BEREEE S EFATREN RS
E - MERTIRRE - @RS (2
ERERREERY) B S AR
ARE  MERB—RB0KA -
AR ER B B B i R U A B W R
HRBIRET  ANSERERSE
R o SREEE TR m s
£ o ERNAKENE ZRWFIAT)
HEZTRARUNEFPAR A&
EMEENEESETER - AKE
WEREE HRRFIAERTE
EEA R RRE B EER RS
i BRRPRBRRE

RN—_E-—F+-_A=+—H0" &
5 FE W IR B 4E PR UK A B 5 SR IE A
R¥31394,000L (ZEZFF : A
R #34,426,0007T) °

B REGAENEmERE QA FE
P& e
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17. B5BWRE @)
REREAR - BDRUGRER
BB RNG BB EO R

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Contd)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of each reporting

period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

MR -

2021 2020

—EB-—F —ECEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETTT

Within | year | A 38,170 37,452
| to 2 years | E24F 1,277 942
2 to 3 years 2E3F 598 -
40,045 38,394

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables

are as follows:

B 5 RUGRIRRER R R EZES N

T

2021 2020

— ZEITF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBFIT

At beginning of year REA]) 451 229
Impairment losses, net BB 91 222
At end of year RER 542 45|

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are
based on ageing for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about

past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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B 75 R 3R BT =
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AT

\WR\,
miEl=

\,‘\

R
l-l.lg-’-

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Contd) 17. EZEWFE#)

Throughout the year, management kept monitoring the recoverability of
trade receivables. Since the actual loss rate for trade receivables and the
adjustments for forward-looking factors did not have significant changes
during the year, management kept the same expected credit loss rate
during the year. If there is an indicator for a significant change in credit
risk, management would reassess and revise the expected credit loss rate

where appropriate during such year ended.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2021

REEFE ERE-BEHEE

FENGRIRR AT B - AN FERE
ZRYFANERE B R LATE T
AENFHBESEBERE L - EEE
REAFRKHEBNAMEERR
o MAFRRAEERRELS
R EEERNEHABEER
BRI RMEERER -

ERASERARERETENE
ZBWFIENEE RO B H
Fgn

R-B-——F+=A=+—8

Ageing
iR
Within | year | to 2 years 2to 3 years
(E3 1228 1Z3F
Expected credit loss rate BHEEERE 2% 5% 10% 2%
Gross canrying amount due from B %= AkmME
independent third parties (RMB'000) (ARETT) 8,721 398 74 9,193
Expected credit osses (RMB000) BEHEEER (ARETT) 174 20 1 201
Expected credit loss rate BHEEERE 1% 2% 4% 1.09%
Gross carrying amount due from related  FEYUEEE 7 BRI (E
parties (RMB'000) (AREFTT) 29,923 917 554 31,394
Expected credit osses (RMB000) BHEEBR(ARETT) 300 18 23 341
Total expected credit losses (RMB000) ~ EHIEEFEAR(ARETT) 474 38 30 542
F45 2021

*
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—E-—F+-A=+—H

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Contd) 17. EZBWIE#)
As at 31 December 2020 R=-ZE=-EF+=A=+—H
Ageing
fRie
Within | year | to2 years 210 3 years
|ER |22 153F
Expected credit loss rate REEEHEE 2% 5% 10% 229%
Gross carrying amount due from BV E = BREE
independent third parties (RMB'000) (ARETT) 3999 40 - 4419
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEBR(ARETT) 80 2 = 101
Expected credit loss rate BHEEERER 1% 2% 4% 1.02%
Gross carrying amount due from relasted ~ FEUREERS BRI (E
parties (RMB000) (AR®FTT) 33872 554 - 34426
Expected credit osses (RMB000) BHEEER(ARETT) 339 I - 350
Total expected credit losses (RMBO000)  EHIEEBEAE(ARETT) 419 3 - 45]
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B 7% SR R P R

31 December 2021

—F-HF+ZA=1—H

18. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

18. AR -

=
7]

..7 A_
I

\E\W

| |

TNy
-|1=l-'-

Camm

HABWRRTE R

OTHER ASSETS
2020
—EIEF
RMB'000
ARETIT
Prepayments TARTFRIR l,185
Deposits Be 658
Other receivables H A eI FRIE 1,242
Value-added tax recoverable AT e (ER 1,826
4911

The carrying amounts of financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets approximate to their fair values. None of the
above assets is either past due or impaired. As at the end of each reporting
period, deposits and other receivables were classified within stage | and
no impairment was provided for. The financial assets included in the above

balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of

default.

£ 2021

P ATAM IR « Bt 8 YR IR KR H
EENSMEERMERINF
BEE o it & 2 B4 8 B I A Ok
B NERERR  He RHEME
WA B ER RN 5 | B BR e I MRS HR
BERE - StA LSS ERE
FE B 45T B E #) RO 8% Y R UK IR
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31 December 2021
—FHF+ZA=+—H

19. CONTRACT ASSETS

19. BHEE

2021 2020
—E_—F

—ET-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT

Contract assets arising from provision of

REMETIERBATE LN

property engineering services BHREE 22,175 10,749
Impairment VERIE] (222) (107)
21,953 10,642

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue eared from property
engineering services as the receipt of consideration is conditional on certain
milestones or successful completion of construction. Upon the milestones
or completion of construction and acceptance by the customer, the
amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.
The Group's trading terms and credit policy with customers are disclosed
in note |7 to the financial statements. The increase in contract assets
during the reporting period was mainly due to the property engineering
services have not obtained receipt on certain milestones or successful

completion of construction.

Included in contract assets are amounts due from related parties of
RMB22,175,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB10,749,000).

\/\ 172 XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.
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—E-—%+-A=+—H

19. CONTRACT ASSETS (Contd) 19. ERNEE#)
The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets as at 3| Rt A=+—RKExEEFER
December is as follows: BEMNTEBARENT
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBETTT
Within one year —FR 20,855 10,110
After one year —F1& 1,098 532
Total contract assets BHEERE 21,953 10,642
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract assets are BRNEERENBEREZSH N
as follows: I

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETTHF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

At beginning of year REA]) 107 115
Impairment losses, net BEEE  FE 115 (8)
At end of year RER 222 107
Impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision RE& G B R A B EEREETR
matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates for the BT - UErETEHEEEE © &5
measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract assets are BANEERREEEBEMNERER
based on those of the trade receivables as the contract assets and the DERE SR FIBEEREEEE
trade receivables are from the same customer bases. The provision rates BEXRNTEmMEL  REAEH
of contract assets are based on ageing of contract assets for groupings of BENESEKZIBRABREE
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type B AHNEENBERIENRES
and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the HUEBREX (AIRERERE &
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is FHEARFR)NSEZFHSEE
available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and WEERKRMET o ZTE REEE
forecasts of future economic conditions. AR  BEEEBEBRNE

SEHAESERNBESM - 280
AR B R SRAE AR TROR B0 & 38 Ko
BEEH -
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o E Y E
31 December 2021
—FHF+ZA=+—H

19. CONTRACT ASSETS (Conta)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group's contract assets using a provision matrix:

19. ERNEE®)

AR ARERETENS
A& EREE RO &R 40
T

.

Expected credit loss rate TBEAEEEEXR
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)

iRmEE(ARETIT)
BEMEEREE (ARETT)

1% 19
22,175 10,749
222 |07

Included in carrying amounts of contract assets as stated above is retention
money of RMB1,098,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB532,000).
The retention money is to be settled after one year at the end of each

reporting date.

Retention money is unsecured and interest-free and represented the
monies withheld by customers of contract works fully recoverable within 2
years (i.e., the warranty period) from the date of completion of respective
property engineering services in accordance with the terms specified
in the relevant contracts. Upon satisfactory completion of the whole
project as set out in the contract, the customers will issue a completion
certificate. Generally, two years after the issuance of the completion
certificate, the whole retention money of such project will be released
to the Group. This amount of retention money is included in contract
assets until the end of the warranty period as the Group's entitlement to
this final payment is conditional on completion of the warranty period.
The Group is responsible, at its own costs, for remedial works that may
arise from defective works or materials used. The warranty period serves
as an assurance that the construction services performed comply with
agreed-upon specifications and such assurance cannot be purchased
separately. The Group classifies these contract assets as current because
the Group expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle. The
retention money does not have any significant financing component for a

financing benefit.

RZF-_—F+=-A=+t—H8 "t
MEHNEENEAERRERESA
K% 1,098,000t (ZEZFF : A
K #532,0007T) ° (RE & A% R
EHR—FREE -

RESAEEBLEE @ EEHT
BEPAMBAKIE - HAIRAH
Y TRRB T 2 BREMRE (B
RIEER) NIRRR B RS LFT B IER
BEUE - REHFTEEEEE U
SARENATRATIR  BPE%
HETHEE - —RiMs - TLEH
BHENMRT - BHBEEHEBR
ESHREAEE - ZIRESFTA
EHWEE  BEEREHER - RA
BN BN % Bx 18 1 SRR FI A
RIEBNTERIEY - AEEHE
FRFE A T2k A RIM B AT g2 5| 8
WEMIEAER  BRABAEEEF
1THEME - RIEBRRFBEITHER
ARIETE A 4 E MR RZIRE AT
BEBEE  AKEEZEANEE
PERRBEE REEAEEE
HRHEERCEARNEEER -
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EHEAREXD

Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 R

31 December 2021
—E-—f+-A=+—H

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

\ L\ W\
B
= ———

[=
7]

20. RERBEEBYIURR

bR, IBITER

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Cash and bank balances e RIRI TR 399,232 269,166
Time deposits EHER 50,000 100,000
449,232 369,166
Less * Restricted and pledged bank deposits B R R RRRITIER

Guarantee deposits ERER (100)

Pledged deposits RIPER (50,000) -
Cash and cash equivalents ReLReZEEY 399,132 369,166
Denominated in: FHEA

RMB AR 444,981 359,306

usD e 24 2

HK$ BT 4,227 9,838

449,232 369,166

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks

authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

£ 2021

ARETEE MR RBE I

BRI B At COMNE B IR R D1 Ko
(KIE - EERNEEERE) K
RE A BREREETINERTH

RITHARBLBBEMEE
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o E Y E
31 December 2021
—E-—F+-A=+—H

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

RESTRICTED/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (Contd)

At 31 December 2021, One of the Company's subsidiary in the PRC
has pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB50,000,000 (2020: Nil) to
guarantee the bills acceptance granted by a bank under a bills acceptance
agreement (“Bills Acceptance Agreement”) to a related party which is a
member of Zensun Development Group and controlled by Ms. Zhang,
the non-executive director of the Company. In March 2022, such pledge
was terminated between the Company's subsidiary and the bank and all
pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB50,000,000 was released from
the financial guarantee provided by the Group for the indebtedness of the
related party (refer to Note 35).

Cash at banks and districted bank deposits eamn interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default and no expected

credit loss was expected to incur.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate to their

fair values.

20. RERBEEBYIURR

R "SHBITER®)
NZZT_—F+ZA=+—H &K
NEEFRMK B A RA ZRIRTT
A AR 50,000,000 (-2 =
ZF  T)EA—MBITREELE
Bz (AL EBHE]) @ s
(BEREREENKE AT AZAE
NRFERITERRL LEH)DRHE
EAEBRENER RZT_=
F=A  ARFHRBARDERTT
IR - B AR50,000,0007T
ZEZBIBITEREBERALEY
A 5 BTG IR HA B IS B AR R AR BR
(FB2BIMIEE35) °

RITFERRFRRITFRIREN R
1T B ARG EH)F B F X EREL
FB o RITAER I F BT I &
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21. TRADE PAYABLES 21. BEFZRAFRE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of each reporting REREHR - EHENRBEER
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: ZEAHNREROTAT
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBFT
Within | year Edo 21,939 22921
Over | year HBiE | F 567 2,361
22,506 25,282
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled in less B RNFTEAGTEE—BR=(E
than three months. The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate RS - BSRNRIENREE
to their fair values. HHENTERS -
22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22. HitbEARERETE A
2021 2020
—E-—fF ===
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFT
Payroll payables ERNIE 7,814 5903
Tax payables other than income tax FERTRRIR (RS FERR M) 8,058 6,014
Amounts due to related parties JE 1T RSt 7 FRIE 1,825 1,489
Deposits b7 9,667 8,038
Listing expenses MR - 1,727
Other payables Hh fE < 5RIR 27,788 12,485
55,152 35,656
The amounts due to related parties were non-trade in nature, JENRAEE T B RIEE SIS - T
non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand. TRRBRERERER -
The carrying amounts of financial liabilities included in other payables and AR MENZRIENEFERNE
accruals approximate to their fair values. BEENREEREAE A TEES °
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23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. EHNARE

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ETHF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBETT

Advanced receipts for property management YT IR MIEE RIS TR MRIA

and value-added services 74,040 40,235
Included in contract liabilities are amounts due to related parties of N_E-_—F+-_A=+—0H " &
RMB4,005,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB2,203,000). The ABRBEBOEMNAR A KEAA
increase in contract liabilities during the reporting period was mainly due R#4,005000L (ZFEZFF : A
to the increase in the number of properties under management by the K#2,203,0007T) - &K B ERERE
Group. HEMFr 2R AEBEEDEH

BB ANFTEL

\/\ 178 XINGYE WULIAN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 R M A
31 December 2021
—E-—f+-A=+—H

NN =

24. PROVISIONS 24. BfE
Assurance-type
warranties
(REBAER
RMB'000
ARETTT
At | January 2020 N\_T_TF—H—H

Arising during the year FRNEE 2,030

As at 3| December 2020 and | January 2021 W-ZE_TF+_A=+—H
r=—F—_—%—HF—H 2,085
Arising during the year FRNEE 1,010
At 31 December 202 | WZZE_—F+_-_HA=+—H 3,095

2021 2020
—E2-—fF —EIEF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Analysed into: DNTE
Current BNHA
Non-current JERNER

1,238 834
1,857 1,251

The above provision is recognised for expected warranty claims on
services provided during the year, based on estimation of management. It
is expected that these costs will be incurred in the next one to two years.
Assumptions used to calculate the provision for warranties were based on
current sales levels and current information available about repairs based

on the warranty period for the services provided.

FH 2021

BB EIIRIBE B BN G 0 5L
F IR A RAS B TR H R 8 BR R AR
R EMZERABRARE—EM
FREL - AR EREREHOR
RIERERHEKFERERAIE
SOAERBEE (ERREERRBEOR
ER)ER -

HEYBREEETRAF
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B 75 R 3R BT =
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. IR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEOIEBTZEEBR
Equivalent
Number of Nominal nominal
shares value value
R E [ERE EEHE
HK$’000 RMB’000
THET ARBTR
Authorised: ZE
At | January 2020 RZE_TF—H—H 38,000,000 380 340
Increase in authorised ordinary shares ERE B BARIE N 9,962,000,000 99,620 89,518
At 31 December 2020, | January 2021 R =FF
and 31 December 2021 +=-A=+—H
“T-—HF-A-Bk
“ZZ-F+ZA=1+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000 89,858
2021 2020
—FB-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT
Issued and fully paid: ERTIHE -
400,000,000 (2020: 400,000,000) 400,000,000A8 (ZZE=F4F : 3,572 3,572
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 400,000,000/% )

BREECOIETZ ERKR

»
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B 75 R 3R BT =
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (Contd)

A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as follows:

) =

llll\=\l\‘\-\-

25. BA& (&)

EREEOIBITZEER
(&)
ARBBA

#Eh
=

st T -

Number of Nominal
shares value Amount
RO E [ETfE HfE
HK$’000 RMB’000
TET AR%®TR
At | January 2020 RZE=ZF—H—H 10,000 = =
Capitalisation Issue BRbETT () 299,990,000 3,000 2,675
Issue of new shares upon BRARBEEITHR (i)
initial public offering 100,000,000 1,000 897
At 31 December 2020, | January 2021 RZZT=FF
and 3| December 202 | T=HA=+—8"
—E—f%-A-Bk
—FT-—%+-A=1+-A 400,000,000 4,000 3,572

0) Pursuant to a written resolution of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) passed on 7 February 2020, a total of 299,990,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at par value to the Shareholders
as of the date immediately before the Listing Date on a pro rata basis by
way of capitalisation of HK$2,999,900 (the “Capitalisation Issue”) from the

Company's share premium account on the Listing Date.

(i) On the Listing Date, 100,000,000 new shares were issued at a price of

HK$1.99 per share in connection with the Company's initial public offering
on the Stock Exchange.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with other shares in

issue in all respects.

£ 2021

BARRARBRE(TRENDR=ZZ
—EFE-_ALRABENEERR
XREZELWHRBIER - &
NG )N Tl = e NN
1@ EER & 2R1£2,999,90078 7T
LB M AR R B R BEITA
299,990,000 0% F AR EI{E0.0 1 B TTHY
B ([BA(LEETT]) -

0)

REMBE  RARRAR A
PR B R AR E BT
100,000,000 B FTR% 17 » B1T1B A

FHRI199BTT ©

(i)

REABITHOAERDHERME
BT ERE T EZE A RFHAL -

*
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—E-—%+-A=+—H

26. RESERVES 26. f#iE

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

(i) Share premium
The share premium of the Group represents the difference between

capital injection and the share capital paid by the shareholders.

(ii) Merger reserve and capital reserve
The merger reserve and capital reserve of the Group represent
those reserves arose from the reorganisation for the purpose of

listing on the Stock Exchange.

(iii) Statutory surplus reserve
In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, each of these
entities is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after tax,
as determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the
statutory surplus reserves until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
entities, the statutory surplus reserves may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase share capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserves cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which it is created and is not distributable as

cash dividends.

(iv) Other reserve
Other reserve of the Group represents those reserves arising from

the share-based payment in prior years.

»
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ABIPTECE TREIEVARPR - )&
TR R AR ER K
ER IR IR - (B RE
HBHRETNS LR AEEGFME
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—%+-A=+—H

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 27. HERERERMTE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions () EEHFRERS
FR - AEEEREFRHERH
BERnERAREEREEAE
HIFREREDRNAT (=T
—FF : AR%1,894,0007T)
RE(ZEZZF : ARK
1,894,0007T) ©

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of nil (2020: RMB1,894,000) and nil (2020:
RMB1,894,000), respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for

buildings.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RIEEBELNERBELE
activities

Lease

liabilities

HERE

RMB’000
AR®T

R—ZE—_—F—HF—H

At | January 2021

£ 2021

Changes from financing cash flows

BERASREELNED

New leases g =
Interest expenses FERAX 205
Amount settled through a debt transfer agreement MBEGEEREREENSE (197)
At 31 December 202 R-_EB_—F+-A=+—H 5,104

Lease

liabilities

HERE

RMB'000

ARETT

At | January 2020 RZEZTEF—H—H 4054
Changes from financing cash flows BMERESREEENE -
New leases THE 1,894
Interest expenses FEAX 174
Amount settled through a debt transfer agreement RREEERNEEENSE (1,026)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-_TF+-_HA=1+—H 5096
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—%+-A=+—H

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 27. RERERERMT (@)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Contd)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERERHARE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash FFABRSRERNEER SN
flows is as follows: BRI T -

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-ETF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFT
Within operating and financing activities B E MR E R B P - =

28. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 28. EEHEF
Details of the Group's assets pledged for the related party's indebtedness AN E s EBEFRNE
are included in notes 20 to the financial statements. E BN R MIEE20 -
29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29. RBAME

As at 31 December 2021, one of the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC RZE_—F+A=+—H K
had pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB50,000,000 to guarantee the ANREREBME A RAZFRTT
bills acceptance granted by a bank under the Bills Acceptance Agreement TR A ARKS50,000000TEAE—ME
to a related party which is a member of Zensun Development Group and IRITRIBAEE B W& (ERLEER
controlled by Ms. Zhang, the non-executive director of the Company. Wzl RBEKS (REREREE
In March 2022, such pledge was terminated between the Company's BB AR EXARRIFFEHITES
subsidiary and the bank and all pledged bank deposits amounting to oR 2 TR ) 5 B AL IR IR i
RMB50,000,000 was released from the financial guarantee provided by WHER RZT__F=8 A1
the Group for indebtedness of the related party (refer to Note 35). AN A R 2 ERERITAR A L HE 3R -
The Board consider that the possibility of default in payment regarding B AKE#50,0000007T 2 ZHRITF
the indebtedness of the related party is remote as the above pledge RE BB RS EH T BRRR
was terminated between the Company’s subsidiary and the bank and all BB ERFER (F2HM T
pledged bank deposits was released from the financial guarantee provided 35) c EEERR - ANEARFRA
for the indebtedness of the related party before the date of this annual HiZ Bl - AARIME A RE EIRTT
report, and therefore, no provision has been made in the consolidated KIEBERER - BRAEXRRITRE
financial statements for the contingent liability associated with the financial RE BB B R BIEHB R1E
guarantee provided by the Group to guarantee the bills acceptance granted RAARRR - BERARE 5 B EEBR K
by the bank to the related party. BAFRMERE SRR GE YT

Bk WAL AR B L — R RTTH
BARE 77 1% By AL RIBBR L RO BE 7%
EREBENIBABEFELEE -

»
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
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30. COMMITMENTS 30. &iE
The Group had no significant commitments as at the end of each reporting REENE I EHARI M E AL -
period.
31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. BHARS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere () RIELEHBHREREMBL
in these financial statements, the Group had the FrFRBRG N RE
following transactions with related parties during W REBEEBEE S AU
the year: "RF:
2021 2020
-
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
iiEsd ARBTRT | AERETT
Sales of services or products: HERG SN ER :
Property management and MEARE T IRt R E IR
value-added services rendered to MR ERRTS
related parties () (i) 42,027 26,766
Property engineering services ) B 7 He it 2
rendered to related parties TR 0X® 45,722 45,688
Others HAth 2,552 1414

90,301 73,868
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B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd) 31. BB AR Z (#)

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during
the year: (Contd)

Notes:

() The sales of services rendered to the related parties were based on
agreements mutually agreed by both parties.

(i) The Group was engaged in the provision of property management

and value-added services and property engineering services to
Ever Diamond Group, Zensun Enterprises Group and Zensun
Development Group.

Ever Diamond Global Company Limited and Zensun Enterprises
Limited are ultimately owned as to 100% and 71.99% by a
discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector
as at the date of this report. As Ms. Huang is the mother of Ms.
Zhang, the non-executive director of the Company, both Zensun
Enterprises Group and Ever Diamond Group are connected entities
of Ms. Zhang. Additionally, the Zensun Development Group are
entities controlled by Ms. Zhang.

The related party transactions in respect of property management
and value-added services and property engineering services rendered
to related parties above also constitute continued connected

transactions as defined in Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

All of the transactions above were carried out in the normal course
of the Group's business and on terms as agreed between the

transaction parties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o EY I E
31 December 2021
—F-HF+ZA=1—H

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contq)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

(©

£ 2021

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Xingye |IOT
Management, a subsidiary of the Company, signed a debt transfer
agreement with certain related parties to transfer the receivable
collection rights due from those related parties to Henan Zensun
Real Estate Co., Ltd.,, another related party of the Group. After the
completion of the transfer, Xingye IOT Management will settle the
receivables and payables with Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd. on

the net basis after offsetting.

Details of the Group's outstanding balances of trade receivables,
contract assets, other payables, contract liabilities and lease liabilities
and amounts with related parties are disclosed in notes 17, 19, 22,

23 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively.

The trade receivables, contract assets, other payables, contract
liabilities and lease liabilities and amounts with related parties due

from/to related parties are unsecured and interest free.

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

—)
\ W\
CH
= ——

E
7]

31. BBt AR S (#)
(b) ERRAEE S MARBEAERR

(©)

HE-_ZT-——F+=-f=+—
BIEFE - AARIMEBA R E
XY E IR EE TR 5 55
ERE R - SEKGZES
Bt 75 B FE MG B R GRS R T
AEES BB TEEEE
XERAA - EETHE - H
B B T 48 1) I S 14 1) SR RE
HREEERmEEXERAR
B FE WK T8 K FE S 5RIE o

NEEEEAE T E 5 REBK
B EHEE  EtERK
H - &6H8E HEAEKS
Bt SRIER R B EERFIED
AR BHRERMTEI7 > 19
22~ 3R ISHEFE -

BHRWFE  ARNEE  H
ENIE - AHRE  HE

BB MY FEA RAEE 7T HORE
B SR SEEH MRS

FEBEREFEASHMH

2021 2020

—E2-—F —ECEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BT R ARETT

Short term employee benefits RERE B BT 1,607 1,443
Post-employment benefits BEER 1242 132 70
1,739 1,513

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to

the financial statements.

SEEMErE— FRBENE
TSR LS
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. REFIETWEMTA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as REMEHR  FeRTAEMND
at the end of each reporting period are as follows: FREELT :
Financial assets TREE
2021 2020
—E2-—-F —ECEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
Financial assets at amortised cost: REBHBAIENEMEE ! ARET T ARBFT
Trade receivables B S EWRIR 40,045 38,394
Financial assets included in prepayments, ST ATENFRIE - H i EUGRIE
other receivables and other assets MEMBEENSREE 9,633 1,900
Restricted and pledged bank deposits R EZRIRITER 50,100 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 399,132 369,166
498,910 409,460
Financial liabilities cHas
2021 2020
—EC--F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REBHEAIENEMEE ! ARET T ARBFT
Trade payables B SN IR 22,506 25,282
Financial liabilities included in other SEARMENRIBER BT E A
payables and accruals NemBE 39,280 23,739
Lease liabilities HERE 5,104 5,096
66,890 54,117
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33.

34.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—f+-A=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments as at 3|1 December 202 |
and 2020.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager reports directly
to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial

officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation

sale.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which

arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit risk
and liquidity risk. The directors of the Company review and agree policies

for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

£ 2021

33.

34.

[=
2]
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|
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P
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[E &%

EREEAMRN_ZE—FR=-ZT
—EF+_A=+—HNRE KA

EEY  BHEUGIE - EHE
IR0R ~ SEATRN IR - EfbfEUR

RENEMEENSREE  sTA
Hip N RAREFEANERE
ENAFEEEKREERS T2
BN ZE TANDIHHRERE -

ZRER (B RO B 5 B e A A5 A IR AR
BEEFTERMIARNFEFENK
KRR - M EEERANHE
ERENZEQER -NEREH
H - BBHotffes TAEENE
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o E Y E
31 December 2021
—E-—F+-A=+—H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties and
related parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's

exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to
credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on
ageing information unless other information is available without undue cost
or effort, and year staging classification. The amounts presented are gross

carrying amounts for financial assets.

3] December 2021

34.

MR EEERRBUR

(&)

SRR
A RIEBRIFNE=

AREEEER

TRBETETER - AEENK
REMEBEAREEEGFETES
MEP  ARIEEEZER - It
Sh - BURIBEBRTEREE - M

MR X mm

AEBAZIZROERL TEK ©

B = B I F R B By
TREFREASBEEERRET
MEEEERESER EXT BN

RERERN RER (BRIFEMERNE
ANEBERARE NS -
AERIG) - AMERER DR - AT
2ICERATRHEENREAR

—F-—F+=A=+-H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A T
FEER 2HRAEEER
— Simplified
Stage | Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
FIRR  FWBR B3R ELEH @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTRL ARETRT AR¥T:R
Trade receivables* B SR> - - - 40,587 40,587
Financial assets included in ATABRTE - Hi
prepayments, other receivables FEWGIE Rt B R
and other assets EREE
— Normal** —EE* 9,633 - - - 9,633
Contract assets* BREE - - - 22,175 22,175
Restricted and pledged bank deposits ~ S2PR RS2 R1 T
— Not yet past due — WRE 50,100 - - - 50,100
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEN
— Not yet past due — ARG 399,132 - - - 399,132
458,865 - - 62,762 521,627
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Contd)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 I E
31 December 2021
—F-HF+ZA=1—H

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Contd)

31 December 2020

34.

T =

R EE B ERBUR
()
RERRKFERERE)
—®=FF+=f=1—A

[2-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 7B
FEER rHRHEEER
S Simplified
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F IR FUER F3WR  BlkAE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Trade receivables* B H R TIE* - - - 38,845 38,845
Financial assets included in STATBMFE -
prepayments, other receivables YRR A EEN
and other assets SRBE
— Normal** —[EF* 1,900 - - - 1,900
Contract assets* BNEE* - - - 10,749 10,749
Cash and cash equivalents BekBe%EEY
— Not yet past due —HARH 369,166 - - - 369,166
371,066 - - 49,594 420,660
& For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies the * WA ARE BB S RE S ER

BHREFERGHNEEMS -
EREEERENER SRR B

simplified approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in notes |7 and |9 to the financial statements,

respectively. SRR 7R 195 PR o
3 The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other #* (HET ATENFOE - EfpElLERIE
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are REMEERNS GLE E T #6 H
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets BEmERBERESSREERN
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, = B Rk B ¥4 TR LA B oK g 3
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”, m-AtEeREENERES R
WRAINEE] - BRIl - EER
BEMNGEEEREERIAIER] -

-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2021
—E-—%+-A=+—H

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 34. B EREBREERBE

AND POLICIES (Conta) (&)

Liquidity risk REE SR

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of each REREHR  AEBEREBER
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as & ) AR B TR SRR B BB R 40
follows: I

As at 31 December 2021 R-F-——#+=-A=1—H

On Less than lto5 Over

demand | year years 5 years Total

BEX  ORIF 1256  @BSHE A5t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETT AR®TR AR®TR ARRTRT ARETR

Trade payables B I ENFE 22,506 - - - 22,506
Financial liabilities included AR EAFIE
in other payables and accruals REFERNSRAR 39,280 - - - 39,280
Lease liabilities HERE - 1,703 3,119 1,276 6,098
61,786 1,703 3,119 1,276 67,884
As at 31 December 2020 R-E—_FF}+_F=+—H

On Less than [to5 Over

demand | year years 5 years Total

REX K= | E54F BiBsF st
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETER

Trade payables BHRENTE 25282 - - - 25,282

Financial liabilties included STARMERFIE
in other payables and accruals REGTERNERAR 23739 - = = 23739
Lease liabilities HEAR - 1326 2959 1,891 6,176
49,021 1326 2959 1891 55,197
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34.

35.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—f+-A=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders'

value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,

policies or processes for managing capital during the reporting period.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings divided by total equity. As at the end of
the reporting period, there were no interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. As such, no gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting date

was presented.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
In March 2022, the pledged bank deposits (refer to Note 20) was

terminated between the Company's subsidiary and the bank and all
pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB50,000,000 was released from
the financial guarantee provided by the Group for the indebtedness of the
related party.

£ 2021
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
—E-—%+-A=+—H

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

36. A )BT R I*

ARRRBEARNBHARKE

BERT

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RIE A RIEIRE 321 330
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 321 330
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReLReZEEY 1,416 6,936
Due from subsidiaries JEULHI /B A R FIB 252,274 238,127
Total current assets MENEERE 253,690 245,063
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables and accruals Hib e IE R EA 20,846 2,720
Total current liabilities mENREREE 20,846 2,720
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 232,844 242,343
Net assets BEFE 233,165 242,673
EQUITY R
Share capital [N 3,572 3,572
Reserves (note) i (Mt 229,593 239,101
Total equity AR 233,165 242,673

»
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R 3R BT =
31 December 2021
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Contd)

Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

36. RN T]E

BIEE

1=
=

'
EEEEEERE:
R

DI =

BRI R (@)

ARBZBAREERELT

Share Share  Exchange  Retained
capital premium reserve earnings Total
BRE  ROBE ERREE REER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTRE AR¥TR AR%®TR AR%TR
At | January 2020 RZZEZZF—-H—H - 89,755 3) (34) 89,718
Profit for the year FE R - - = 8,406 8,406
Other comprehensive loss for the year  FAE M 2 HE1E
Currency translation differences B ERR - - (15,535) - (15,535)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ F R 2 EE LR = = (15,535) 8,406 (7,129)
Capitalisation Issue BT 2,675 (2,675) - - -
Issue of shares BADET 897 177,591 - - 178,488
Share issue expense PRI EITHIX = (10,164) = = (10,164)
Interim 2020 dividend —Z_TFERERE - - = (8,240) (8240)
At 31 December 2020 and N_F_TF+-A=1—H
| January 2021 k=F-—5—H—H 3,572 254,507 (15,538) 132 242,673
Loss for the year FRER - - - (2,995) (2,995)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FREMZEE1E
Currency translation differences bE A HE - - (6,513) - (6,513)

Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ FR2EEIEEE -

- (6,513) (2,995) (9,508)

At 31 December 2021 R=ZE-_—F+=-A=+—H 3,572

254507  (22,051) (2,863) 233,165

37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 30 March 2022.

£ 2021
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MG HE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEFE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

“E2--% ZTZTF  —T-NF T N\F CT+F

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR AR®TT ARETT AR®TRT ARETRH

Revenue ey 281,660 213,188 184,122 131,046 76,068

Gross profit E7 93,806 86,739 78652 62291 38,206

Profit before tax BRAEAE R 72,769 60,720 46,904 45458 26,343

Income tax expense FEHRAX (18,241) (17217) (11731 (11238) (7.064)

Profit for the year ERET] 54,528 43503 35,173 34220 19,279
Attributable to: DA PR -

Owners of the Company AAREBA 54,528 43503 35,173 34220 19,279

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND

REEE  BEERkEE

LIABILITIES
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-BH
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“E2--% —ZT-TF  —T-NF  T-N\F CET+F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Assets BE
Non-current assets EnBEE 6,209 7,141 5533 3,640 3491
Current assets MEEE 526,020 423,113 210468 188290 12790
Total assets BERE 532,229 430,254 216,001 191,930 131,392
Equity and liabilities BEREE
Non-current liabilities ErREarE 6,037 5833 2,228 92| 826
Current liabilties nEan 155,684 108077 99,773 69,793 43570
Total liabilties BERSE 161,721 113910 102,001 70,714 44396
Total equity EnesE 370,508 316,344 114,000 121216 86996
Total equity and liabilities BaRkaGeER 532,229 430,254 216,001 191930 131,392
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